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CIN: L74110DL1994PLC059341 
Registered Office: Hemkunt Chambers, Flat No.620,  
89, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 
Corporate Office: A-89, Sector-2, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh 
Email: info@orosil.com, Phone No.: 0120-4125476 
Website: www.orosil.com 
 

  NOTICE is hereby given that the 26th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members 

of OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, the 30th day of 

December, 2020, at 12.00 P.M (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio 

Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

1. TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 

COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 AND THE REPORTS OF THE 

AUDITORS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 

ended March 31, 2020 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid 

before this meeting be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.” 

 

2. TO RE-APPOINT MR. KARAN SURI (DIN:01193500), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND BEING 
ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT, AS A DIRECTOR.  
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Karan Suri (DIN:01193500), who retires by rotation at this 
meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
 

mailto:info@orosil.com
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
3. TO CONSIDER RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. VINIT AGGARWAL (DIN:00539344) AS NON – 

EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY TO HOLD OFFICE FOR A SECOND 
TERM OF 5 CONSECUTIVE YEARS.  
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule 

IV and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act, 2013) and the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as may be amended 

from time to time, and Regulation 16 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Vinit Aggarwal (DIN: 

00539344), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive Independent) w.e.f. 

28th September, 2020 by the Board of Directors upon recommendations of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee of the Company (“the Committee”) after satisfying the criteria 

laid down by the Committee, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in 

writing from a Member of the Company proposing his candidature for the office of Director 

pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, 2013, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company, whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation, to 

hold office for a second term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 28th September, 2020 till 27th 

September, 2025; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is authorized to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and take all such steps as may be necessary, expedient and 
desirable to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
4. TO CONSIDER RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. BHUSHAN KUMAR NARULA (DIN:00003629) AS 

MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.  
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘the Act’) and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), subject to 
all requisite consent and approvals, the consent of the members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula (DIN: 00003629) as 
Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 3 consecutive years with effect from 01st 
April, 2020 to 31st March, 2023, at such terms and conditions as may be agreed and as 
determined by Nomination and Remuneration Committee with liberty thereto for varying the 
terms and conditions of said appointment as it may deem fit and acceptable to Mr. B. K. 
Narula, within the maximum limits of remuneration for Managing Director, if approved by the 
members of the Company or as set out in the resolution No. 5 of the said notice and the 
explanatory statement annexed thereto; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and take all such steps as may be necessary, expedient and 
desirable to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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5. TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO MR.BHUSHAN KUMAR 
NARULA, MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY. 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 (Act) and the 

Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, or any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, read with Articles of Association of the 

Company and such other approvals as are necessary and subject to the Special Resolution 

passed by the Members in Item No. 4 as set out in the said notice for re-appointment, consent 

of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to 

Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula, Managing Director of the Company, as recommended by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company as 

follows: 

 

1.  Period of Appointment: 3 Years (From April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2023). 

 

2.  Annual Remuneration and other terms: 

(a) Annual Fixed Pay (inclusive of basic salary, perquisites, allowances and other benefits): 
Rs. 7, 20,000 w.e.f. 01st April, 2020 (Rupees Seven Lakh Twenty Thousand only). 

 
(b)  Variable Pay (Performance Linked Incentive) to be paid as per PLVR Scheme of the   

Company or such sum as may be determined by the Board and/or Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of Directors of the Company, from time to time. 

 

(c)  Retirement/Other benefits: Gratuity, provident fund, leave encashment, group personal 

accident insurance, mobile phone expenses, medical insurance and other benefits as per 

the applicable policies and rules of the Company. 

 

(d)  He shall also be entitled to such annual increment as may be determined by the        

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

 

(e) He shall also be entitled to reimbursement of all legitimate expenses actually and 

properly incurred by him while performing his duties and such reimbursement will not 

form part of his remuneration. 

 

(f) He shall not be entitled for any sitting fee for attending any meetings of Board or 

Committees thereof. 

 

(g) He shall be liable to retire by rotation. However, retirement by rotation and re-

appointment shall not be deemed to be a break in service. 

 

(h) There is no contract of service in writing with Mr. BK Narula. The terms set out in the 

resolution may be treated in compliance of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial 

year or years, the remuneration as approved herein be paid as minimum remuneration to 

Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula, subject to receipt of requisite approvals, if required, under the 

Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of Directors be and is hereby authorized to vary and/or revise the remuneration 

of Mr. BK Narula, within the aforesaid limits; settle any question or difficulty in connection 

therewith and incidental thereto; to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 

deemed necessary; and take such further steps in this regard, as may be considered desirable 

or expedient by the Board in the best interest of the Company.” 

 

6. TO CONSIDER RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. RITA NARULA (DIN: 00006096) AS WHOLE-TIME 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY  
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘the Act’) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
the re-appointment of Mrs. Rita Narula (DIN: 00006096) as Whole Time Director of the 
Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 01st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2023, at such 
terms as approved by Nomination and Remuneration Committee with liberty thereto for 
varying the terms and conditions of said appointment as it may deem fit and acceptable to 
Mrs. Rita Narula within the maximum limits of remuneration for Whole Time Director as 
approved by the members of the Company in the foregoing resolution and the explanatory 
statement annexed thereto: 
 

1. Period of Appointment: 3 Years (From April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2023).  
 

2.      Annual Remuneration and other terms:  
 

(a)  Annual Fixed Pay (inclusive of basic salary, perquisites, allowances and other benefits): 

Rs.  5,40,000/- (Rupees Five Lakhs Forty Thousand only). 

 
 

(b)  Variable Pay (Performance Linked Incentive) to be paid as per PLVR Scheme of the 

Company or such sum as may be determined by the Board and/or Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of Directors of the Company, from time to time. 

 

(c) Retirement / Other benefits: Gratuity, provident fund, leave encashment, group 

personal accident insurance, mobile phone expenses, medical insurance and other 

benefits as per the applicable policies and rules of the Company. 

 

(d)  She shall also be entitled to such annual increment as may be determined by the    

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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(e)   She shall also be entitled to reimbursement of all legitimate expenses actually and 

properly incurred by her while performing her duties and such reimbursement will not 

form part of her remuneration. 

 

(f)   She shall not be entitled for any sitting fee for attending any meetings of Board and 

Committees thereof.  

 

(g) She shall be liable to retire by rotation. However, retirement by rotation and re-

appointment shall not be deemed to be a break in service.  

 

(h) There is no contract of service in writing with Mrs. Rita Narula. The terms set out in the 

resolution may be treated in compliance of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial 
year or years, the remuneration as approved herein be paid as minimum remuneration to 
Mrs. Rita Narula, subject to receipt of requisite approvals, if required, under the Act, 2013 
and other applicable provisions; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
expedient and desirable to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

7. AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO MATERIAL RELATED PARTY CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS / 
TRANSACTIONS: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 177, 188 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the approval of 
the Member of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors, to enter 
into one or more contracts / arrangements / transactions with the following related parties 
for the amounts stated hereunder:  
 

S. 
No. 

Name of the Related Party Amount (In Lakhs) 

1.  Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula Rs. 30 

2.  Mrs. Rita Narula Rs. 25 

3.  Ms. Sidhi Narula Rs. 20 

4.  BK Narula HUF Rs. 50 

5.  Xtrems Retails Private Limited Rs. 50 

6.  Sridhi Infra Private Limited Rs. 20 

7.  Sukarma Finance Limited Rs. 20 
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during the Financial Year 2020-21 on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed 
upon between the Company and the related party/ ies; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to decide upon the nature and value of the products, goods, materials or services 
etc. to be transacted with related parties within the aforesaid limits; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect 
to this resolution.” 
 

8. RATIFICATION OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS / 
TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 177, 188 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”), 
the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to ratification of the 
contracts / arrangements / transactions entered with the related parties as per details below, 
during the Financial Year 2019-20, which exceed the limits of materiality as defined:  
 

S. No. Name of the Related Party Amount  

1. BK Narula (HUF) Rs. 30,79,000 

  
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect 
to this resolution.” 

 
 By Order of the Board of Directors 

                            For Orosil Smiths India Limited 
     Date:  30 November, 2020 
     Place: Noida                              B.K.Narula 

                                                                                                                                (Managing Director) 
                         DIN: 00003629 

  
 

    Registered Office:  
    Hemkunt Chambers, Flat No.620,  
    89, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND 
SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY 
SECRETARIES OF INDIA 
 

Item No. 3 
 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors shall hold 

office for a period of up to 5 consecutive years and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. They 

may be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms of up to 5 years each.  

Further, in terms of Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the tenure of independent directors shall be in accordance with the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, in this regard, from time to time. 

Mr. Vinit Aggarwal (DIN: 00539344) had joined the Board of Directors of the Company on 30th 

April, 2015 as an Additional Director. He was appointed as a Non-Executive Independent 

Director for a term of 5 consecutive years commencing from 28th September, 2015 as approved 

by the Shareholders at the 21st Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28th 

September, 2015. The 1st term of his appointment was up to 27th September, 2020. 
 

The Board of Directors, on recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, re-

appointed him as an Additional Director (Non-Executive Independent) with effect from 28th 

September, 2020 to hold office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 

Company. 

 

Further, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on November 30, 2020, on recommendations 

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and keeping in view his performance, skills, 

experience and contributions, approved seeking the consent of Members for his re-appointment 

as an Independent Director for a second tenure of five years with effect from 28th September, 

2020, whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, his continued association would be of immense benefit to the 

Company. Mr. Vineet Aggarwal fulfils conditions of appointment as Independent Director as 

specified in the Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. He is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 

164 of the Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as Director. The Company has also received 

declaration from him that he meets the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 

149(6) of the Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. He is also not debarred from 

holding the office of a director by virtue of any Order of SEBI or any other authority. 

In terms of Section 160 of the Act, the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member 

proposing the candidature of Mr. Vineet Aggarwal for re-appointment as an Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company. A copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of Mr. Vineet 

Aggarwal setting out the terms and conditions of re-appointment is available for inspection 

without any fee by the members, till the date of AGM.  

His brief resume, educational and professional qualifications, nature of his work experience etc. 

are given under the head “Additional Information”. 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 3 as a Special Resolution for your 

approval. 
 

Mr. Vineet  Aggarwal is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice with 

regard to his re-appointment. His relatives may be deemed to be interested in the resolution to 

the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.  
 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 

the above referred resolution. 
 

Item No. 4 
 

As per Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, a Managing 

Director can be appointed or re-appointed for a term not exceeding 5 years at a time. After that, 

they have to be re-appointed. 

 

Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula (DIN: 00003629) was appointed as Managing Director at the 21st 

Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2015 for a period of 5 consecutive years and 

that he is liable to retire by rotation. The Board of Directors considered the matter of his re-

appointment in its meeting held on February 10, 2020 on recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee, subject to approval of members in the ensuing General Meeting, 

and felt that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and recommended his 

re-appointment as Managing Director of the Company, whose office shall be liable to retirement 

by rotation, for a term of 3 (three) consecutive years commencing from April 01, 2020 till March 

31, 2023.  

 

Further, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on November 30, 2020, on recommendations 

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and keeping in view his performance, skills, 

experience and contributions, approved seeking the consent of Members for his re-appointment 

as a Managing Director for a further period of 3 years with effect from 01st April, 2020, whose 

office shall be liable to retire by rotation. 
 

Accordingly, special resolutions are proposed to take shareholders’ approval for the re-

appointment of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula, as Managing Director. 

 

Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of 

Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Director. Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula is 

also not debarred from holding the office of a director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any other 

authority. 

 

His brief resume, educational and professional qualifications, nature of his work experience etc. 

is given under the head “Additional Information”. 

 

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 4 as a Special Resolution for your 

approval. 
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Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice 

with regard to his re-appointment. Relatives of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula may be deemed to 

be interested in the resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the 

Company.  

 

Mr. Narula is the spouse of Mrs. Rita Narula, the Whole Time Director of the Company. Mr. 

Karan Suri, Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of the Company, is the son-in-law of Mr. 

Narula. 

 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 

the above referred resolution. 

Item no. 5 
 

In terms of the provisions of Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under and Articles of Association of 

the Company, revision in the remuneration of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula, Managing Director of 

the Company requires approval of the shareholders. Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula was re-

appointed as Managing Director for a period of 3 consecutive Years w.e.f. 1st April, 2020, subject 

to the approval by the Members at the ensuing General Meeting as set out in the resolution No. 

4 of the said notice. Keeping in view Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula's performance, the complexities 

of the responsibilities handled by him, industry remuneration benchmarks and his experience in 

the field, the Board of Directors recommends the revised remuneration to Rs. 60,000 per month 

or on such the terms, as set out in resolution, as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. 

 

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 3 as a Special Resolution for your 

approval. 

 

Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of this Notice 

with regard to hisremuneration. Relatives of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula may be deemed to be 

interested in the resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.  

 

Mr. BK Narula is the spouse of Mrs. Rita Narula, the Whole Time Director of the Company. Mr. 

Karan Suri, Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of the Company, is the son-in-law of Mr. 

BK Narula. 

 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 

the above referred resolution. 
 

Item No. 6 
 

As per Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, a Whole 

Time Director can be appointed or re-appointed for a term not exceeding 5 years at a time. After 

that, they have to be re-appointed. 
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The Board of Directors had appointed Mrs. Rita Narula (DIN:00006096) as Whole Time Director 

at the 21st Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2015 for a period of 5 consecutive 

years and that she is liable to retire by rotation. The Board of Directors considered the matter of 

her appointment in its meeting held on February 10, 2020 on recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and felt that her association would be of immense 

benefit to the Company and recommended her re-appointment as Whole Time Director of the 

Company, subject to the approval of members at the ensuing General Meeting whose office 

shall be liable to retirement by rotation, for a term of 3 (three) consecutive years commencing 

from April 01, 2020 till March 31, 2023. 

 

Further, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on November 30, 2020, on recommendations 

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and keeping in view her performance, skills, 

experience and contributions, approved seeking the consent of Members for her reappointment 

as a Whole Time Director for a further period of 3 years with effect from 01st April, 2020 up to 

31st March, 2023, whose office shall be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

Mrs. Rita Narula is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of 

the Act and has given her consent to act as Director. She is also not debarred from holding the 

office of a director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any other authority. 

 

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 6 as a Special Resolution for your 

approval. 
 

Mrs. Rita Narula is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of this Notice with regard to 

her re-appointment. Relatives of Mrs. Rita Narula may be deemed to be interested in the 

resolution to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.  

 

Mrs. Narula is the spouse of Mr. BK Narula, the Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Karan 

Suri, Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of the Company, is the son-in-law of Mrs. Narula. 

 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 

the above referred resolution. 

Item No. 7 

The Company in the ordinary course of its business and on arm’s length basis, enters into 

transactions for sale / purchase of goods / services / allocating common corporate expenditure 

with: 

S. No. Name of the Related Party 

1.  Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula 

2.  Mrs. Rita Narula 

3.  Ms. Sidhi Narula 

4.  BK Narula HUF 

5.  Xtrems Retails Private Limited 

6.  Sridhi Infra Private Limited 

7.  Sukarma Finance Limited 
 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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These are ‘Related Parties’ of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 2(76) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) or is ‘Related Party’ of the Company in terms of the provisions of 

Indian Accounting Standards (“IND-AS”).  

The value of the transactions proposed which will be on an arm’s length basis, are based on the 

Company’s estimated transaction value for Financial Year 2020-21, arrived at on the basis of the 

value of transactions with such related parties during the Financial Year 2019-20. Regulation 23(4) 

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Regulations”) 

provides that all material related party transactions shall require approval of the shareholders 

through ordinary resolution.  

The explanation to Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Regulations provides that a transaction with a 

related party shall be considered material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or 

taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the 

annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of 

the listed entity. Further, in terms of first proviso to Section 188 of the Act, 2013 read with Rule 

15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the contracts or 

arrangements exceeding the sums as may be prescribed, shall be approved by the shareholders 

of the Company.  

The above mentioned contracts between the Company and the ‘Related Parties’ are likely to 

exceed the thresholds of materiality limits as defined under the SEBI Regulations / Act / Rules and 

the Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions of the Company. Your Directors recommend 

the resolution set out at Item No. 7 as an Ordinary Resolution to the Members for their approval.  

Provided that the related parties along with their relatives are deemed to be concerned or 

interested in the resolution set out as Item No. 7 of this notice to the extent of their directorship, 

shareholding or interest, if any, in the Company and/ or in the referred ‘Related Parties’. 

However, the details of the directorship, shareholding, concern and interest is provided in 

annexure as attached to this notice as “Annexure-I”.  

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 

above referred resolution. 

Item No. 8 

The Company in the ordinary course of its business and on arm’s length basis, enters into 

transactions for sale / purchase of goods / services / allocating common corporate expenditure 

with BK Narula HUF. Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Regulations”) provides that all material related party transactions shall 

require approval of the shareholders through ordinary resolution. The explanation to Regulation 

23(1) of the SEBI Regulations provides that a transaction with a related party shall be considered 

material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous 

transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of 

the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the listed entity.  

Further, in terms of first proviso to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 

15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the contracts or 
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arrangements exceeding the sums as may be prescribed, shall be approved by the shareholders 

of the Company. BK Narula HUF is ‘Related Parties’ of the Company.  

During the financial year 2019-20, to meet the business need of the Company, the related party 

contracts / arrangements / transactions with BK Narula HUF exceeded the limits. The aforesaid 

material related party contracts / arrangements / transactions with BK Narula HUF had already 

been ratified by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at their respective 

meetings.  

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 8 as an Ordinary Resolution to the 

Members. 

The bifurcation of all the transactions entered with the BK Narula HUF, during the Financial Year 

2019-20, is as follows: 

S. No. Nature of Transaction Amount  

1. Purchase Rs. 17,89,000 

2. Sale Rs. 12,90,000 
 

Mr. BK Narula, Mrs. Rita Narula and Mr. Karan Suri are interested in the resolution set out at Item 

No. 8 of this Notice. Relatives of Mr. Narula may be deemed to be interested in the resolution to 

the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.  

 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 

above referred resolution. 
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NOTES: 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be 

followed and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated 8th April, 

2020read with circulars dated 13th April, 2020 and 5th May, 2020 and 28th September, 2020 

(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting 

(“AGM”) through VC / OAVM Facility, without the physical presence of the Members at a 

common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act, 2013”), SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), 

MCA Circulars and circular dated 12th May 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (“SEBI Circular”), the 26th AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM Facility. 

The deemed venue for the 26th AGM shall be the Corporate Office of the Company. 

In terms of the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Notice of the 26th AGM will be available on 

the website of the Company at www.orosil.com and on the website of BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and also on the website of Skyline Financial Service Limited at 

www.skylinerta.com and also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote 

e-Voting facility) i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general 
meeting (“the meeting”) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and on a poll to vote instead of 
himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company.  
 
Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular through VC / OAVM 
Facility, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the 26th AGM of the Company 
and therefore the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
 
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the 
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

3. Attendance of the Members of the Company, participating in the 26th AGM through VC / OAVM 
Facility will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act, 
2013. 

 
4. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to special 

business to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto. 
 

5. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the person seeking appointment/ re-appointment 
as Director under Item No. 3, 4, 6 of the Notice, is annexed as hereto.The Company has received 
relevant disclosures / consent from the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment. 
 

6. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 

Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 

Wednesday, December 23, 2020 to Wednesday, December 30, 2020 (both days inclusive) for the 

purpose of 26th Annual General Meeting. 

 

 

http://www.orosil.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.skylinerta.com/
www.evoting.nsdl.com
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7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Member(s) holding shares in 

electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with 

whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.  
 

8. Mandatory updating of PAN and Bank details against your physical holding: 
 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular SEBI/HO/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 

dated 20th April, 2018, mandated that the companies through their Registrar and Transfer Agents 

(“RTA”) should take special efforts for collecting copies of PAN and bank account details for the 

security of the holders holding securities in physical form. Those security holders whose folio(s) 

do not have complete details relating to their PAN and Bank Account, or where there is any 

change in the bank account details provided earlier, have to compulsorily furnish the details to 

RTA/ Company for registration /updating. 
 

You are therefore requested to submit the following to update the records: 
 

 KYC Format duly filled in and signed by the shareholder/ or all the shareholders (in case 

of Joint holders). 

 Self-attested copy of PAN Card of the shareholder/ or all the shareholders. 

 Cancelled Cheque leaf with name (if name is not printed, self-attested copy of the pass 

book showing the name of the account holder) of the shareholder/ or first holder. 

 Address proof (self-attested Aadhar-card) of the shareholder/ or first holder. 

 Any change in the name of the holders. 

 

Note: You are requested to Ignore this communication if you have already updated you details 

with RTA / Company.  

 

9. SEBI has also mandated that requests for effecting transfer of securities (except transmission or 
transposition of securities) shall not be processed after March 31, 2019, unless the securities 
are held in dematerialized form. Hence, the Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to convert their holdings to dematerialized form to at the earliest. Members can 
contact the Company or Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd. for assistance in this regard. 

 

10. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 23rd December, 2020 and as per the Register of 
Members of the Company. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this 
Notice for information purpose only. 

 

11. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only the Member whose name appears first will be 
entitled to vote. 

 

12. Since 26th AGM of the Company will be held through VC / OAVM Facility, therefore Route Map is 
not annexed to this Notice. 

 

13. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in view of the prevailing situation, owing to the 
difficulties involved in dispatch of physical copies of the Notice of the 26th AGM and the Annual 
Report for the year 2019-20 including therein the Audited Financial Statements for Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2020, are being sent only by email to the Members. Members who have not 
registered their email addresses with the Company or with their respective Depository 
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Participant/s, and who wish to receive the Notice of the 26th AGM and the Annual Report for the 
year 2019-20 and all other communication sent by the Company, from time to time, can now 
register the same by submitting a duly filled-in request form mentioning their folio number, 
complete address, email address to be registered along with scanned self-attested copy of the 
PAN Card and any document (such as Driving License, Passport, Bank Statement, Aadhar Card) 
supporting the registered address of the Member, by email to the Registrar. Members holding 
shares in demat form are requested to register their email addresses with their Depository 
Participant(s) only. 

 

14. Member(s) who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their 
e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices etc. from the 
Company electronically. 
 

15. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their 
address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants (“DPs”) with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to 
advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company / Company’s Registrar and 
Transfer Agents, i.e. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited. 

 

16. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the 
AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before 24st December, 2020 through email on  
cs@orosil.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. Documents referred to in this 
Notice will be made available for inspection as per applicable statutory requirements. 

 

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 

Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are 

also advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for a long time. Periodic statement of 

holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be 

verified from time to time. 

 

Members can send their requests, if any, to cs@orosil.com and info@skylinerta.com 

 
17. The requirement to place the matter relating to the appointment of Statutory Auditors for 

ratification by Members at every Annual General Meeting has been done away with vide 
notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Accordingly, no 
resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of M/s. PNG & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 021910N), Statutory Auditors, who were appointed to hold office from the 
conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting for a term of consecutive five years till conclusion 
of the 29th Annual General Meeting. 

 

18. Your attention is invited on the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Amendment Rules, 
2019 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 8 February, 2019. A person is considered as a 
Significant Beneficial Owner (SBO) if he /she, whether acting alone, together or through one or 
more individuals or trust holds a beneficial interest of at least 10% or more or refer the provisions 
as amended. The beneficial interest could be in the form of a Company's shares or the right to 
exercise significant influence or control over the Company. If any member holding shares in the 
Company on behalf of other or fulfilling the criteria, is required to give a declaration specifying 
the nature of his / her interest and other essential particulars in the prescribed manner and 
within the permitted time frame. 

mailto:%20cs@orosil.com
mailto:%20cs@orosil.com
mailto:cs@orosil.com
mailto:info@skylinerta.com
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19. As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules thereof, facility for making 

nomination is available to individuals holding shares in the Company. Members holding shares in 

physical form may obtain Nomination Form No. SH-13 from the Company's RTA. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are required to approach their DPs for the nomination. 

 

20. The Company's equity shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form by all investors 

Shareholders are requested to get the shares dematerialised in their own interest. 

 
21. Voting through electronic means  

 
(a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 
44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and MCA 
Circulars the Company is pleased to provide its members the facility to exercise their right to 
vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by 
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility 
of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other 
than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL).  
 
The Member(s) requiring any assistance with regard to use of technology for remote e-
voting or at any time before or during the 26th AGM (including e-voting in the 26th AGM) 
may contact at email ID: evoting@nsdl.co.in or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager – NSDL 
at pallavid@nsdl.co.in contact at 022-24994545. 
 
Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to 
cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as “ABSTAINED”. 
 
Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 
vote during the meeting. 

 

(b) The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, December 27, 2020 (9:00 am) and ends 
on Tuesday, December 29, 2020 (5:00 pm). During this period members of the Company, 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 
December 23, 2020, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.  

 

22. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE ASUNDER:- 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

 

mailto:pallavid@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Details on Step 1 are mentioned below: 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholders’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 
 

 

5. Your password details are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 
force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open 
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The 
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered: 

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 
 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9.  After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Details on Step 2 are given below: 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click 

on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles. 

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 

4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 

the confirmation page. 

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 

with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail kanchang0506@gmail.comwith a copy 

marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 

event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 

Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose e-mail IDs are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user ID and password and registration of e-mail IDs for e-voting for the resolutions 
set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
cs@orosil.com 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID 
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@orosil.com 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THEAGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above forremote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM throughVC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible tovote through e-Voting system 
in the AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend theAGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connectedwith the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentionedfor 
Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC / OAVM ARE AS 
UNDER: 

mailto:kanchang0506@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs@orosil.com
mailto:cs@orosil.com
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1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through 

the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access the same at 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by using the remote 
e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members 
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who 
do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP 
based login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 
The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice.  
 

2. The Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, of the 
Company will be providing VC/OAVM Services. 
 

3. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

4. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
5. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi 
or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. Further shareholders will be 
required to switch on the video facility. 
 
Instructions for Shareholders to Speak during the Annual General Meeting: 
 

1. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting 
may register themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@orosil.com, at least 
7 days in advance.  
 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision 
made by the Company. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the 
meeting. 
 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the 
meeting. 
 

5. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management 
will announce the name for speaking. 
 

mailto:cs@orosil.com
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23.  A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 
owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. December 23, 2020 only shall be 
entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting. 

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after 
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd December, 2020 may 
obtain the login ID and password by sending an email to info@orosil.com or info@skylinerta.com 
or evoting@nsdl.co.in by mentioning their Folio No./DP ID and Client ID No. 

24. The Company has appointed Ms. Kanchan Gupta, Proprietor of Kanchan Gupta & Associates, 
(Membership No. ACS 45470), Practicing Company Secretary as Scrutinizer for conducting and 
scrutinize the voting and e-voting process in fair and transparent manner. 
 

25. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first download the 
votes cast at the AGM and then will unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not 
later than 48 Hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, 
who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

26.  The results declared along with the Scrutiniser’s Report shall be placed on Company’s website at 
www.orosil.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the result is declared by the 
chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and the same will be communicated to the 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) where the shares of the Company are listed. 

 

27. Members who wish to inspect the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or 
arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and relevant documents referred to in this Notice of AGM and explanatory statement 
on the date of AGM in electronic mode can send an email to cs@orosil.com. 
 

                                                                                                By Order of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                                For Orosil Smiths India Limited 

 
 Date: November 30, 2020                                                                       B.K. Narula 

  Place: Noida                                                                                                                   (Managing Director)
                                          DIN: 00003629 
   
  
Registered Office:  
Hemkunt Chambers, Flat No.620,  
89, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@orosil.com
mailto:info@skylinerta.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.orosil.com/
infocs@orosil.com
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Additional Information 

 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 
 
DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF 
THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
 

1. Mr. Karan Suri (Non Executive Director) 
 

Brief Resume:  
 

Mr. Karan Suri is a director of Clamp Shoes 
Private Limited for around 20 years 
engaged in the business of manufacturing 
of footwear and footwear components for 
domestic as well as export further he has 
done MBA from Symbiosis, Pune. 

 

Date of Birth/ Age 04.12.1977, 43 Years  

 

Date of first Appointment: 
 

09.11.2016  

Last Drawn Remuneration NIL 

Directorship held in other Listed Companies* 
 

NIL 

Membership/Chairmanship of BoardCommittee 
in other Listed Companies# 
 

NIL 

Nature of expertise in specific functional Area Business Management and Footwear 
business 

Disclosure of relationship between directors 
inter-se 

No relationship with any other directors, 
except with Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula 
and Mrs. Rita Narula Managing Director 
and Whole time Director respectively of 
the company, being their Son-in-Law. 

 

Shareholding in the Company 
 

NIL 

Number of Board Meetings attended during the 
year 
 

5 
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2. Mr. Vinit Aggarwal (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

Brief Resume:  
 

Mr. Vinit Aggarwal has a Bachelor’s degree 
in Commerce having over 12 years of 
experience in Medicinal Department and 
spices. 

Date of Birth/ Age 18.04.1983, 37 Years  

 

Date of first Appointment: 30/04/2015  

Last Drawn Remuneration NIL 

Directorship held in other Listed Companies* 
 

NIL 

Membership/Chairmanship of Board 
Committee in other Listed Companies# 
 

NIL 

Nature of expertise in specific functional Area Medicines and Spices 

 

Disclosure of relationship between directors 
inter-se 
 

No relationship with any other directors. 

Shareholding in the Company NIL 

 

Number of Board Meetings attended during the 
year 
 

5 
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3.   Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula (Managing Director) 

Brief Resume:  
 

Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula was 
Chairman of Jewellery Design & 
Technology Institute (JDTI) a model 
institute set up to provide the much 
needed skilled professionals to the ever 
growing industries, was conceptualized 
by its parent Company Orosil Smiths 
India Limited. He is also a Managing 
Director of Orosil Smiths India Limited 
since incorporation with vast 
experience in the relevant field. He has 
experience of around 26 years in the 
said field. Accordingly, his appointment 
is recommended as it is felt that his 
association as Managing Director will be 
beneficial and in the best interest of the 
Company. 

Date of Birth/ Age 28.02.1954, 66 Years 

Date of first Appointment: 01/06/1994  
 

Last Drawn Remuneration Rs. 12 per annum 

Directorship held in other Listed Companies* NIL 

Membership/Chairmanship of Board 
Committee in other Listed Companies# 
 

NIL 

Nature of expertise in specific functional Area Finance and Jewellery 

Disclosure of relationship between directors 
inter-se 

Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole Time Director, is 
spouse of Mr. B.K. Narula and to Mr. 
Karan Suri, Non-Executive Director of the 
Company, being his son-in-law.  

Except above, he is not related with any 
other Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company. 

Shareholding in the Company 
 

70,40,000 shares 

Number of Board Meetings attended during the 
year 
 

5 
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4. Mrs. Rita Narula (Whole Time Director) 

 

Brief Resume:  
 

Mrs. Rita Narula w/o of Mr. Bhushan Kumar 
Narula is a Jewellery Designer having a vast 
experience of approximately 30 years in 
manufacturing and designing of jewelleries and 
enriching knowledge of Gems and Stones. She is 
also involved in Divya Chaya Trust as a convener 
of School which is being run, for last 10 years, 
and continuously contributing to the company 
since incorporation. 

Date of Birth/ Age 16.07.1958 and 62 years 
 

Date of first Appointment: 01.06.1994 
 

Last Drawn Remuneration Rs. 5,40,000 per annum 

Directorship held in other Listed Companies* Nil 

Membership/Chairmanship of Board 
Committee in other Listed Companies# 

Nil 

Nature of expertise in specific functional Area Designing of jewelry and gems and stones 

Disclosure of relationship between directors 
inter-se 

Ms. Rita Narula, Whole Time Director, is related 
to Mr. B.K. Narula, Managing Director of the 
Company, being her Husband and to Mr. Karan 
Suri, Non-Executive Director of the Company, 
being her son-in-law.  
 
Except above, she is not related with any other 
Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company. 

Shareholding in the Company 62,56,735 shares 

Number of Board Meetings attended during the 
year 

5 

* Excluding directorship in Unlisted Public Companies, Private Companies, Foreign Companies and 

Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

# Only two committees i.e. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee have 

been considered as per provisions of Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
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ANNEXURE-I 
 

Information required under the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15(3) of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (for the Item No. 7& 8 of this Notice): 
 

S. 
N
o. 

Name of 
the  
Related 
Party 

Name of the Director or 
Key Managerial 
Personnel who is 
related  

Nature of relationship Nature, 
material 
terms, 
monetary 
value and 
particulars 
of the 
contract 
or 
arrangeme
nt 

Any other 
information 
relevant or 
important for 
the members 
to take a 
decision on 
the proposed 
resolution 

1. Mr. 
Bhushan 
Kumar 
Narula 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director; Mr. 
Karan Suri, Non-
Executive Non-
Independent Director 

Mr. BK Narula, Self;  
Mrs. Rita Narula, being his 
wife; 
Mr. Karan Suri, being his 
Son-in-Law 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As 
specified 
in the 
resolutions 
at Item 
No. 8 & 9 
of this 
Notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The 
transactions 
will be / were 
at arm’s 
length basis 
and in the 
ordinary 
course of 
business. 

2. Mrs. Rita 
Narula 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director; Mr. 
Karan Suri, Non-
Executive Non-
Independent Director 

Mrs. Rita Narula, Self;  
Mr. BK Narula, being her 
Spouse; 
Mr. Karan Suri, being her 
Son-in-Law 

3. Mr. Sidhi 
Narula 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director  

Daughter of Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director and Mrs. 
Rita Narula, Whole Time 
Director 

4. BK Narula 
HUF 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director 
 

Mr. BK Narula, Managing 
Director and 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director are Member 
of HUF 

5. Xtrems 
Retails 
Private 
Limited 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director; 
Mr. Karan Suri, Non-
Executive Non-
Independent Director 
 

Mr. BK Narula, Managing 
Director and 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director are the 
Directors and Shareholders, 
holding more than 2% of its 
paid-up share capital along 
with their relatives in 
Xtrems Retails Private 
Limited; 
Wife of Mr. Karan Suri, i.e., 
Mrs. Ridhi Suri is the 
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Director and Shareholder of 
the Company, holding more 
than 2% of its paid-up share 
capital  

6. Sridhi 
Infra 
Private 
Limited 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director; 
Mr. Karan Suri, Non-
Executive Non-
Independent Director 
 

Mr. BK Narula, Managing 
Director and 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director are the 
Directors and Shareholders, 
holding more than 2% of its 
paid-up share capital along 
with their relatives in Sridhi 
Infra Private Limited;  
Wife of Mr. Karan Suri, i.e., 
Mrs. Ridhi Suri is the 
Shareholder (holding more 
than 2% of Paid-Up Share 
Capital) of Sridhi Infra 
Private Limited 

7. Sukarma 
Finance 
Limited 

Mr. BK Narula, 
Managing Director; 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director; 
Mr. Karan Suri, Non-
Executive Non-
Independent Director 
 

Mr. BK Narula, Managing 
Director and 
Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole 
Time Director are the 
Directors and holds more 
than 2% of Paid-Up Share 
Capital along with their 
relatives in Sukarma 
Finance Limited; 
Wife of Mr. Karan Suri, i.e., 
Mrs. Ridhi Suri is the 
Director and Shareholder of 
the Company holds more 
than 2% of Paid-Up Share 
Capital 
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BOARD’S 

         REPORT 
 
To, 
The Members,  

Orosil Smiths India Limited 
 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 26th Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 

Statements along with the Report of Auditors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 
 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2020 as compared to the previous financial year are as under: 

         Amount (Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars Financial year ended  

31st March, 2020 

Financial year ended  

31st March, 2019 

Revenue from Operations 167.87 157.32 

Other Income 0.93 2.59 

Total Income  168.80 159.91 

Total expenditure excluding 

Depreciation 

179.06 181.43 

Add: Depreciation 15.98 16.66 

Total expenditure 195.04 198.09 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax & 

Exceptional Item 

(26.24) (38.18) 

Exceptional Item 0.00 11 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (26.24) (49.18) 

Tax Expenses:   

Current Tax 0.00 0 

Deferred Tax 0.00 0 

Previous Year Adjustment 0.00 0 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (26.24) (49.18) 

Other Comprehensive Income    (5.41) (0.14) 

Total Comprehensive Income (31.65) (49.32) 
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2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE/OPERATIONAL REVIEW 

The revenue from operations and other income for financial year under review were Rs. 168.80 
Lakhs as against Rs. 159.91 Lakhs for the previous financial year registering a growth of 5.56% in 
the current year in comparison to the corresponding previous year. The net loss was Rs. 26.24 
Lakhs for the Financial Year under review as against loss of 
Rs. 49.18 Lakhs for the previous financial year. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report 
of the Company, containing therein its Standalone Financial Statements will be made available on 
the website of the Company at web link https://orosil.com/pages/investor-annual-report. 
Further, a detailed analysis of Company's performance is included in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis, which forms part of this Annual Report. 

3. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS  

Orosil Smiths India Limited is a company incorporated on 01st June 1994 primarily engaged in the 
business of Manufacturing, fabrication, Sale, Purchase, Traders/ Dealers of all kinds of Gold, 
Silver, Silver Ornaments/ Utensils and all other items of Gold, Silver and allied business. 
 
Due to growth of trade in jewellery in the online medium, the Company has opened the account 
to sell their silver jewellery products on Flipkart.com. The company is offering silver jewellery 
under “Kuhjohl” brand. Earlier company was offering sale of “Kuhjohl” Jewellery on its own 
website, namely; https://orosil.com/. 
 
The Company altered its Memorandum of Association in the Annual General Meeting held on 30th 
September, 2019, to expand its operations in the textile sector, however, the operations under 
the said sector has not been started yet. The Management is still looking for the potential 
opportunity to grow in this sector. 
   
Your Directors expect that there will be further improvement in overall performance in the 
coming years and looking for expansion of business in the sector of manufacturing and trading of 
all kinds of fashionable garments. 
 
Due to the Corona Virus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), a pandemic declared by the World Health 
Organization, the nationwide lockdown was imposed by the Central and State Government(s) to 
control the spread of the disease. Accordingly, the operations of the Company also closed 
substantially, resulting into adverse effect. 
 
The directors are making efforts to enhance the business activities and can only hope to regain 
the business activities in future when situation became stable. But we expect business loss to 
reduce, though it is too early to forecast the situation. 
 
4. DIVIDEND 
 
Due to losses incurred by the Company, your Directors have considered it financially prudent to 
not to declare any dividend. Therefore, no dividend has been recommended for the year ended 
31st March, 2020. 
 
 

https://orosil.com/pages/investor-annual-report
https://orosil.com/
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5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Company has not transferred any amount to Reserves and Surplus during the year under 
review. 

6. DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted/received any Deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the 
financial year ended 31st March 2020. Further, there was no outstanding public deposits and 
unclaimed deposits as at 31st March, 2020.   

7. SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year under review, the Company did not issue Equity Shares and Preference Shares. 
The paid- up Share Capital as on 31st March, 2020 was 5,22,00,000. 

Further, the Company has neither issued shares with differential voting rights nor sweat Equity 
Shares. 

The company has issued 10,88,400, 3.5% Optional Convertible Cumulative Preference Share 
("OCCPS") of face value Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- each, convertible after 5 years 
from the date of issue. However, OCCPS holders do not have an option to convert into equity 
share at an earlier date. Now, these shares are convertible at any time, however, till now no 
request has been received by the Company from OCCPS holders for such conversion. 

8. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

During the year under review, the Company has expanded its business in Textile Sector too. 
However, the Operations are not yet started in that segment. 

9. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES COMPANY 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company. During the 
year under review no company has become or ceased to be its subsidiary, joint venture or 
associate Company. 

10.   DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Rita Narula, Managing Director of 
the Company was liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment, 
was re-appointed by the Members of the Company in the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 30th September, 2019. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Listing Regulations, Ms. Bhavana Sampath Kumar, 
the Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, her tenure expires in the last general 
meeting, was appointed for the further tenure of 5 consecutive years. 

During the year under review, Ms. Himanshi was appointed as the Company Secretary, w.e.f.  03rd 
August, 2019 and has resigned from the post of Company Secretary, w.e.f. 30th December, 2019, 
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the board places on record deep appreciation and valuable guidance provided by her during her 
tenure. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of 
Association of the Company Mr. Karan Suri, Non- Executive Director of the Company, retires by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable provisions of the of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vineet Aggarwal, was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 
30.04.2015. He was appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company in 
Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2015 for a period of 5 consecutive years from 
the conclusion of that Annual General Meeting. His first tenure of appointment expired on 27th 
September, 2020. The Board of Directors appointed him as an additional Independent Director, 
w.e.f. 28th September, 2020 in their meeting held on September 12, 2020, up to the date of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Company 
is seeking approval of members by way of a Special Resolution for his second tenure of 5 
consecutive years starting from 28 September, 2020 up to 27th September, 2025. 

Mr. B.K. Narula, Managing Director, who was appointed in the Annual General Meeting held on 
September 28, 2015 for a period of 5 years and whose term of Appointment expired on 31st 
March, 2020 was re-appointed by Board further period of 3 consecutive years starting from 
01.04.2020 in their Meeting held on February 10, 2020.. According, requisite approval of member 
by way of Special Resolution is required as set out in the notice of the General Meeting forming 
part of this Annual Report. 

Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole Time Director, who was appointed in the Annual General Meeting held 
on September 28, 2015 for a period of 5 consecutive years and whose term of Appointment 
expired on 31st March, 2020, was appointed by the Board, w.e.f. 01.04.2020 for a further period 
of 3 consecutive years, subject to the approval of members by way of a Special Resolution. 
Requisite approval of member is accorded for her re-appointment as Whole Time Director. 

Brief resumes of the abovementioned Directors being appointed / re-appointed, nature of their 
expertise in specific functional areas, details of Directorship in other companies, membership / 
chairmanship of committees of the board and other details, as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) 
of SEBI LODR and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
are given in the Notice forming part of the Annual Report. 

All Independent Directors have given declaration to the Company that they meet the criteria of 
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of 
SEBI LODR. Further, all the Directors have also confirmed that they are not debarred to act as a 
Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other statutory authority. 

It may be noted that post Financial Year, pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors and subject to the approval of Members of the 
Company in the ensuing General Meeting, Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula is drawing remuneration of 
Rs. 60,000 per month w.e.f. 1 April, 2020.  

No. of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on date of this report are: 
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 Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula                                Managing Director (Chairman)  
 Mrs. Rita Narula                                                   Whole Time Director  
 Ms. Bhavana Sampath Kumar                            Non- Executive Independent Director  
 Mr. Vineet Aggarwal            Non- Executive Independent Director  
 Mr. Karan Suri                                                       Non-Executive Director  
 Mr. Sanjay Bana*                                                 Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
 Ms. Dinky Bansal**           Company Secretary 

*(Resigned w.e.f. 07th July, 2020, due to some personal reasons. However, again re-
appointed w.e.f. 30th October, 2020). 
**(Appointed w.e.f. 30th October, 2020). 
 

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 

During the year under review, 5 (Five) Board Meetings were held on April 27, 2019, August 03, 
2019, August 10, 2019, November 09, 2019, February 10, 2020.The agenda and Notice for the 
Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors and few notices has been sent on 
shorter notice to the directors of the Company. Then necessary quorum was present in all the 
meetings. The gap between any two meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days 
as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013. 

The details of the Board Meetings and attendance of the Directors are as follows: 

S. 

No. 

Name of Directors No. of Board Meeting 
Held during the year 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

1. 1
. 
Mr. B.K Narula 5 5 

2. 2
. 
Mrs. Rita Narula 5 5 

3. 3
. 
Ms. Bhavana Sampath Kumar 5 1 

4. 4
. 
Mr. Vineet Aggarwal 5 5 

5. 5
. 
Mr. Karan Suri 5 5 

 

12. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

As required under Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors here 
by state that: 
 
i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the 

applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures.; 

 
ii. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of 
the Company for the year under review;  
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iii. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
iv. the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020 on a 

going concern basis. 
 
v. the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 
 
vi. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the 
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 
Regulations, etc.  Declarations have been received from all Independent Directors of the 
Company that they meet the criteria of independence and that they are not aware of any 
circumstance or situation which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or 
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgement and 
without any external influence, as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 (Listing Regulations). 

All the independent directors of the Company has registered themselves in the Data Bank duly 
launched by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). 

Your Company has also devised a Policy on Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
which aims to familiarize the Independent Directors with your Company, nature of the industry in 
which your Company operates, business operations of your Company etc. The said Policy may be 
accessed on your Company's website at the link: 

http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/famili-prog-for-indep-director.pdf 

14. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

During the financial Year ended 31st March 2020, a Separate Meeting of the Independent 
Directors of the Company was held on August 03, 2019, at the corporate office of the Company, 
inter alia, to discuss: 
 
a) Review of performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 
b) Review of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the 

Executive Directors and Non- Executive Directors 
c)  The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties. 
 
 
 

 

http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/famili-prog-for-indep-director.pdf
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15. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

An extract of the Annual Return pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in prescribed Form MGT-9 
forms part of the Board Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure-A”. 

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the Financial Year under review ended on 31st March 2020, all contracts or arrangements 
or transactions entered into by the Company with related parties were in the ordinary course of 
business and on an arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as applicable. There are no materially significant related party transactions 
made by the Company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, 
which may have potential conflict with interests of the Company at large. 

However, as per observation of Secretarial Auditor it has been observed that the Company, has 
entered into the transaction with B K Narula HUF exceeding threshold as specified in the 
Companies Act, 2013, therefore, the board proposed the ratification of Related party 
transactions held with B K Narula HUF in the ensuing Annual General Meeting as set out in 
Resolution No. 8 in the notice annexed to this Annual Report. 

The details of Related Party Transactions are disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements 
attached to and forming part of the Annual Financial Statements and also stated in Form AOC-2 
annexed as “Annexure –B”. 

The policy on materiality of Events is as follows: 
 
http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/policy-on-materiality.pdf 
 
17. AUDITORS 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules there under, M/s PNG & 
Co., Chartered Accountants having FRN 021910N, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company by the members in the 23rd Annual General Meeting held on July 25, 2017 to fill the 
casual vacancy in the office of Auditors until the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting. 
The said appointment of Statutory Auditors in casual vacancy arouse due to resignation of M/s 
Kumar Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants.  
 
On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommended the re-appointment 
of M/s PNG & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 021910N) as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a fresh term of 5 consecutive years, i.e. from the conclusion of the 24th Annual 
General Meeting held on 29th September, 2018 until the conclusion of 29th Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the Year 2023 subject to ratification of the appointment by the Members, 
at every Annual General Meeting. As per the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
affairs (MCA) dated 7th May, 2018 for the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 and Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2018, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not 
required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting, therefore no resolution for such 
ratification is taken in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. 
 
The observations of the Auditors in their report on accounts and the financial statements read 
with the relevant rules are self – explanatory. 

http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/policy-on-materiality.pdf
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18. AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted report to the Members of the Company 

for the Financial Year 2019-20, which is unqualified, without any reservation or adverse remark or 

disclaimer. The same report of the auditors is attached to the Financial Statements forming a part 

of this Report. Therefore, Board does not have any explanation or comment. 

 

19. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

The Board had appointed M/s Kanchan Gupta & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to 
conduct Secretarial Audit for Financial Year 2019-20 pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of 
the Companies Act 2013. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2020 is annexed herewith as Annexure “C” forming integral part of this report. The said report is 
contains remark which is stated below: 

1. “Pursuant to Section 203(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, vacancy created due to resignation 
of Company Secretary of the Company in January 2019, not filled-up by the Board at their 
meeting within a period of six months from the date of such vacancy, however new Company 
Secretary has been appointed before the date of issuance of this report. Also, due to non-
appointment of Company Secretary within prescribed time limits, Financials Statement of the 
Company for the FY ended 31.03.2019 has not been signed by the Company Secretary, as 
required by Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. Pursuant to Section 203(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, vacancy created due to resignation 
of Company Secretary of the Company in December 2019, not filled-up by the Board at their 
meeting within a period of six months from the date of such vacancy, however new Company 
Secretary has been appointed before the date of issuance of this report. Also, due to non-
appointment of Company Secretary within prescribed time limits, Financials Statement of the 
Company for the FY ended 31.03.2020 has not been signed by the Company Secretary, as 
required by Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. Related party Transactions (Purchase of goods) held between the Company and  BK Narula 
HUF has exceeded the limit prescribed under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the rules framed there under, however no approval of member has been taken by the 
Company by passing ordinary resolution. 

4. Re- Appointment of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula and Ms. Rita Narula, Managing Director and 
Whole Time Director respectively, subject to approval of members in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting, however, the same has not been intimated to BSE under regulation 30 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

5. Pursuant to Regulation 7(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the compliance certificate shall be signed by both the Compliance Officer 
of the listed entity and the authorized representative of the Share Transfer Agent, however, 
the same has been signed by the Managing Director instead of Compliance officer of the 
Company for the compliance certificate of half year ended on 31.03.2020.” 
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Management’s Reply: 

The Board of Directors considered the remarks received from Secretarial Auditor and give their 
explanation as follows: 

1. As Ms. Shefali Kesarwani resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 13thJanuary, 
2019, due to some personal reasons. The Company was in the process of appointing a new 
Company Secretary. But it did not found any suitable candidate as required for the said post. 

However, the Company has appointed a new Company Secretary, Ms. Himanshi, w.e.f.03rd 
August, 2020. 

2. As Ms. Himanshi resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 30th December, 2019, 
due to some personal reasons. The Company was in the process of appointing a new Company 
Secretary. But it did not find, any suitable candidate as required for the said post. 

Thereafter, due to massive Outbreak of COVID-19, which had been declared as a Pandemic by 
World Health Organization, and subsequent lock down ordered by the Central and State 
Government(s) in India, has caused large economic disruption across the country. The 
government locked down transport services, closed public and private offices, factories and 
restricted mobilization. Due to such circumstances, the Board of Directors could not find 
suitable candidate to induct, as the Company was not able to conduct Face-to-Face 
Interviews.  

However, the Company has appointed a new Company Secretary, Ms. Dinky Bansal, w.e.f. 30th 
October, 2020. 

3. During the Financial Year 2019-20, to meet the business need of the Company, the related 

party contracts / arrangements / transactions with BK Narula HUF exceeded the limits. The 

aforesaid material related party contracts / arrangements / transactions with BK Narula HUF 

had already been ratified by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company at 

their respective meetings and the transaction is also placed before the members of the 

Company for their ratification in the Annual General Meeting as set out in Resolution No. 8 of 

the Notice. 

4. Re-appointment of Directors doesn’t lead to change in Composition or Directorate of the 

Company. That is why the Company has not intimated this to Stock Exchange. Secondly, the 

Company was in the process of appointment of a new Compliance Officer to guide the 

Company. But due to COVID-19  pandemic, not able to conduct interviews.  

However, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 30th November, 2020, 

approved seeking the consent of Members for the re-appointments (as set out in 

the Resolution No. 4 and 5 of this notice) and the Company had intimated about the same to 

the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) pursuant to Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. 

5. As the Company has no Compliance Officer appointed during that period, so the same was 

signed by Managing Director of the Company. 
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20. INTERNAL AUDITOR 

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s Dua Manral& Associates, Chartered 
Accountants (ICAI FRN 023245N) as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2019-
20.  

21. COST AUDITOR 

The Company was not required to appoint cost auditor for the financial year 2019-20 pursuant to 
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

22. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, 

 The Company was not required to maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly such accounts and records are not made and 
maintained, 

23. BOARD EVALUATION 
 
As required, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors specified the manner for 
effective evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and individual Directors in 
accordance with the provisions of the  
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the Board has carried out formal 
annual evaluation of its own performance, its directors individually as well as the evaluation of 
the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance 
with the manner specified by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors. The 
manner in which the evaluation has been carried out is explained below: - 
 
The framework includes the evaluation of directors on various parameters such as: 
 • Board dynamics and relationships 
 • Information lows 
 • Decision-making 
 • Relationship with stakeholders 
 • Company performance and strategy 
 • Tracking Board and committees' effectiveness 
 • Peer evaluation 
 
A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the 
Directors, covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as adequacy of composition of 
the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance of the Board and its Committees. The performance of the individual 
directors was reviewed on the basis of the criteria such as contribution of the individual director 
to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, 
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc. The performance 
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the 
Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non- 
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the 
performance of the Board as a whole. Formal evaluation of all the directors, the board as a whole 
and the committees was conducted and was found satisfactory. 
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24. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors has adopted a 
Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes and the Remuneration Policy. The Policy on 
Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framed to encourage diversity of thought, 
experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board. The Remuneration Policy for 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is aligned to the philosophy on the 
commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The Policy aims to ensure that the 
level and composition of the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all 
other employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to successfully 
run the Company. 
 
The policy on appointment and remuneration to Directors can be accessed from the following 
link: 
 
http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/Appointment-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf 
 
25. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
 The Directors state that the Company is complying with all the applicable Secretarial Standards 
on meetings of the Board of Directors. 
 
26. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. 
 
Four Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year under review. These 
were held on April27, 2019, August 10, 2019, November 09, 2019, February10, 2020. 
 
The composition of the Audit Committee along with meeting & attendance details of each 
member at the Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 
are as follows: 

 

S.No
. 

Name Designation Category 

No. of Audit 
Committee 

Meetings held 
during the year 

No. of 
Audit 

Committ
ee 

Meetings 
Attended 

1. Mr. Vineet 
Aggarwal 

Chairman Non-executive 
Independent Director  

4 4 

2. Ms. Bhavana S. 
Kumar 

Member Non-executive 
Independent Director 

4 1 

3. Mr. Karan Suri Member Non-executive Director 4 4 

4 Mr. BK Narula  Member Managing Director 4 4 

http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/Appointment-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf
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The Committee inter-alia reviews the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls and Financial 
Statements before they are submitted to the Board for their approval. All the recommendations 
made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.  

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

During the year ended 31st March 2020, 4 (Four) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Meeting was held on April 27, 2019, August 03, 2019, August 10, 2019, February10, 2020. 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance details are 
given below: 

 
S. 

No. 

 
Name 

 
Designation 

 
Category 

No. of 
Nomination 

and 
Remuneration 

Committee 
meetings held 

during the year 

No. of 
Nomination 

and 
Remuneration 

Committee 
Meetings 
Attended 

1. Ms. Bhavana S. 
Kumar 

Chairperson Non-executive 
Independent 

Director  

4 1 

2. Mr. Vineet 
Aggarwal 

Member Non-executive 
Independent 

Director 

4 4 

3 Mr. Karan Suri Member Non-Executive 
Director 

4 4 

4 Mr. BK Narula  Member Managing Director 4 4 

 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an on-going process within the Organization. 
The Company has a structured Risk Management Policy to identify, monitor and minimize risks 
and also identify business opportunities. The Company has put in place risk minimization and 
assessment procedures, in order to effectively and efficiently manage risk and address challenges. 
The objective of Risk Management at Orosil Smiths India Limited is to create and protect 
shareholder value by minimizing threats or losses and identifying and maximizing opportunities. 
An enterprise wide risk management framework is applied so that effective management of risks 
is an integral part of every employee’s job. 

http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/risk-management-policy.pdf 

28. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not given any Loan and guarantee to any person or body corporate during the 
financial year. The details of investments made by the Company are in Note No. 3 of the Audited 
Financial Statements. 

http://orosil.in/investors/sebi-policies/risk-management-policy.pdf
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29. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 
OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES, 2014 

The Disclosure required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 
(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure-D. 

Further, in accordance with Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of 
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014, there is no employee who is 
employed either throughout the financial year 2019-20 or any part thereof, was in receipt of 
remuneration of rupees one crore two lakhs per annum or rupees eight lakhs fifty thousand per 
month for part of the year. 

30. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS  

During the year under review, there was no significant material order passed by the Regulators or 
Courts or Tribunals that could impact the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations except Income Tax Order received during the Financial Year under review consequent 
of which Bank account of the Company has been freezed for some time. 

31. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under 
Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations is presented in a separate section, forming part of the 
Annual Report. 

32. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

There are no particulars as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to conservation of energy, 
research & development, technology absorption during the year under review. Further, there was 
no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the Financial Year 2019-2020. 

33. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Company has an Internal Control System, which commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. M/s Dua Manral & Associates, Chartered Accountants, was 
appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company during the year. The Internal Auditor monitors 
and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its 
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies. Significant audit 
observations and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are presented to the 
Audit Committee of the Board. 
 

34. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING  

The Company has formulated a Code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of 
unpublished price sensitive information. The objective of this Code is to protect the interest of 
shareholders at large, to prevent misuse of any price sensitive information and to prevent any 
insider trading activity by dealing in shares of the Company by its Directors, designated 
employees and other employees. The code is uploaded on the website of the Company at 
http://orosil.in/investors/code-of-fair-disclosure/Code-of-Fair-Disclosure.pdf. 
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35. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM  

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) as per the requirements 
of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Directors and Employees of the Company to 
report their genuine concerns or grievances relating to actual or suspected fraud, unethical 
behaviour or any other event which would adversely affect the interests of the business of the 
Company. Whistle Blowers may send their concerns/ complaints to the Chairman of Audit 
Committee in a sealed envelope marked confidential for appropriate action. 

The details of establishment of such mechanism have been also disclosed on the website of the 
Company. It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 
vigil mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) may be accessed on the Company’s website 
“www.orosil.com.” 

36. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY  

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company after the close of the Financial Year till the date of this Report. 

37. LISTING OF SHARES 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. The Annual 
Listing Fee for the financial year 2019-20 has been paid to the Stock Exchange where the Shares 
of the Company are listed. 

38. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

As per Regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Corporate Governance provisions as specified in Regulation 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of 
Regulation 46(2) and Paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V does not apply on the companies whose 
paid- up share capital and net worth is less than Rupees Ten Crore and Rupees Twenty-Five Crore 
respectively. Since the paid-up share capital and net worth of the Company is less than the 
aforesaid threshold limit, the Company is not required to comply with the above mentioned 
Corporate Governance provisions. 

39. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

The criteria of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 is not applicable on the Company during the financial year 2019-2020. 

40. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION,PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from 
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has in place an Anti-
Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 
has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees 
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. During the year 
under review, no complaints were received pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

 

http://www.orosil.com/
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41. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS  

There are no such frauds reported by auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors, 
which are committed against the company by officers or employees of the company under 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

42. ANNUAL REPORT 

 The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, the audited financial statements, Boards’ Report, 
Auditors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) report and other important 
information is circulated to shareholders and other stakeholders and is also available on the 
Company’s website at https://orosil.com/pages/investor-annual-report. 

COVID 19 IMPACT 

Due to the outbreak of Corona virus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), declared a pandemic by the World 
Health Organization, the nationwide lockdown was imposed by the Central and State 
Government(s) to control the spread of the disease. Accordingly the business of the Company 
remained closed for some time. In compliance with the directives issued by the Government, the 
Company resumed operations in a phased manner. The Company ensured the health and safety of 
all involved stakeholders by enforcing all published Government guidelines for social distancing 
and safety. As per the resumption plan of the Company, operations will be ramped-up gradually 
aligned with the market outlook. The aforesaid lockdown has disturbed the economic activity 
through interruption in manufacturing process, disruption in supply chain, etc. As a result, this 
pandemic has an impact on the operations and performance of the Company.  

The Company has posted the impact of the COVID-19 on the Company and its operations, on its 
website that can be accessed through the following link:http://orosil.in/investors/other-
disclosures/Impact-on-Company-Due-to-Covid-19.pdf. 
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On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Orosil Smiths India Limited 
 
  
Rita Narula                                                                     B.K. Narula 
(Whole Time Director)                              (Chairman & Managing Director) 
DIN: 00006096                                                                            DIN: 00003629 
Add: - Apartment No. 501,             Add: - Apartment No. 501, 
Tower-22, Common Wealth            Tower-22, Common Wealth 
Games Village, Delhi 110092             Games Village, Delhi110092 
 
Date: November 30, 2020 
Place: Noida 
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Annexure A to Directors Report 
 

 
 

Form No. MGT-9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

(i) CIN L74110DL1994PLC059341 

(ii) Registration Date 01/06/1994 

(iii) Name of the Company Orosil Smiths India Limited 

(iv) Category / Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non- 
Government Company        

(v) Address of the Registered office and contact 
details 

620, Hemkunt Chambers, 89, Nehru Place, New 
Delhi-110019 
Tel: 0120-2540571-72-73,  
Fax: +91-120-2540578 
Email- info@orosil.com,  
Website -www.orosil.com 

(vi) Whether listed company Yes / No Yes 

(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any 

Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd 
D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-1, New Delhi-110020 
Tel: +91-11- 40450193-97 
E-mail: parveen@skylinerta.com 
Website: www.skylinerta.com 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 
 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall  
be stated: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name and Description of main products / 
services 

NIC Code of the product 
/ service 

% to total turnover of 
the company 

1. Gems and Jewelry 321 99.45 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Name and address of 
the company 

CIN/GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary / 

Associate 

% of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

---------------------------------------------NIL-------------------------------------------- 

 
 
 

mailto:info@orosil.com
mailto:parveen@skylinerta.com
http://www.skylinerta.com/
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup As Percentage of Total Equity): 
 

i) Category-wise Share Holding  
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year – 01st April, 2019 (Face value of  Rs. 

1/- each) 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
– 31st March, 2020 (Face value of  Rs. 1/- 

each) 

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year  Demat Physical Total % of 

total 
shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
total 

shares 

A. Promoters 
(1) Indian          

a) Individual/ HUF 
 

2,38,03,770 - 2,38,03,770 57.61 2,38,55,770 - 23,855,770 57.74 0.13 

b) Central Govt. 
 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) State Govt.(s) 
 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies Corp. 
 

71,74,925 - 71,74,925 17.37 71,22,925 - 71,22,925 17.24 (0.13) 

e) Banks / FI 
 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Any Other 
 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (A) (1) 3,09,78,695 - 3,09,78,695 74.98 3,09,78,695 - 3,09,78,695 74.98 - 

(2) Foreign          

a)  NRIs / 
Individuals/ 
Foreign Nationals 

 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Other – 
Individuals 

 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Bodies 
Corporates 

 

- - - - - - - - - 

ii) Banks / FI 
 

- - - -  - - -  

iii) Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (A) (2) - - - - - - - - - 

Total 
shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 3,09,78,695 - 3,09,78,695 74.98 3,09,78,695 - 3,09,78,695 74.98 

- 
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Category-wise Share Holding (Continued) 
 

B. Public Shareholding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year – 31st 
March, 2019 (Face value of  Rs. 1/- each) 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year – 
31st March, 2020 (Face value of  Rs. 1/- each) 

% 
Chan

ge 
durin

g 
the 

year 

(1)  Demat Physical Total % of 
total 

shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
total 

shares 

(2) Institutions          

a. Mutual Funds - - - - - - - -  

b. Banks / FI - - - - - - - -  

c. Central Govt. - - - - - - - -  

d. State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - -  

e. Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - -  

f. Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - -  

g. FIIs/ Foreign 
Portfolio 
Investors 

- - - - - - - -  

h. Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - -  

i. Any Others - - - - - - - -  

Sub-total (B) (1) - - - - - - - -  

(3) Non-Institutions          

a. Bodies Corp.          

(i) Indian 55,83,650 1,12,000 56,95,650 13.79 56,73,706 1,12,000 57,85,706 14.00 0.21 

(ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b. Individuals          

(i) Individual  
shareholders holding 
ominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh 

9,42,419 3,15,230 12,57,649 3.04 9,84,491 1,82,230 11,66,721 2.82 (0.22) 

(ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs. 1 lakh 

23,36,894 2,03,000 25,39,894 6.15 23,56,280 1,80,000 25,36,280 6.14 (0.01) 

c) N.R.I. (Rep & Non- 
Rep.) 

9880 - 9880 0.02 9880 - 9880 0.02 0 

d) Any Other (Specify)          

i) Hindu Undivided 
Family 

834232 - 834232 2.02 836717 - 836717 2.03 0.01 

ii)Clearing Members / 
House 

- - - - - - - - - 

(iii) Others - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B) (2) 97,07,075 6,30,230 1,03,37,30
5 

25.02 98,42,075 4,95,230 1,03,37,30
5 25.02 - 

Total shareholding 
of Public (B) = 
(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

97,07,075 6,30,230 1,03,37,30
5 

25.02 98,42,075 4,95,230 1,03,37,30
5 

25.02 - 

Grand Total (A)+(B) 4,06,85,7
70 

6,30,230 4,13,16,00
0 

100 4,08,20,7
70 

4,95,230 4,13,16,0
00 

100 - 
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 
Sl. 

No. 
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the end of the 

year – 31stMarch, 2019 (Face 
value of 1/- each) 

Shareholding at the end of the year – 31st 
March, 2020 (Face value of 1/- each) 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
Compa

ny 

% of 
Shares 
Pledge

d / 
encum
bered 

to 
total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
Compa

ny 

% of 
Shares 
Pledge

d / 
encum
bered 

to 
total 

shares 

% 
change 

in 
shareho

lding 
during 

the 
year 

1 B.K.NARULA 70,40,000 17.04 - 70,40,000 17.04 - - 

2 RITA NARULA 62,56,735 15.14 - 62,56,735 15.14 - - 

3 B.K.NARULA HUF 48,18,465 
 

11.66 - 48,18,465 
 

11.66 - - 

4 SIDHI NARULA 29,77,070 7.21 - 30,02,070 7.27 - 0.06 

5 RIDHI SURI 27,11,500 6.56 - 27,38,500 6.63  0.07 

6 SUKARMA FINANCE 
LTD. 

53,92,175 13.05 - 53,40,175 12.93  (0.12) 

7 XTREMS RETAILS 
LIMITED 

12,15,000 2.94 - 12,15,000 2.94 - - 

8 SRIDHI INFRA PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

5,67,750 1.37 - 5,67,750 1.37 - - 

 Total 3,09,78,695 74.98 - 3,09,78,69
5 

74.98 - - 

 

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Shareholder 

As on 1.4.2019 As on 31.3.2020 Date wise increase / decrease in promoter 
shareholding during the year 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
Compa

ny 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Share
s of 
the 

Comp
any 

Date of issue 
of 

share/dispose
d off 

No 
of 

shar
es 

disp
osed 
off 

No of 
shares 
acquire
d/issue  

No. of 
shares at 
the end of 
the year 

1 B.K.NARULA 70,40,000 17.04 70,40,000 17.04 - - - 70,40,000 

2 RITA NARULA 62,56,735 15.14 62,56,735 15.14 - - - 62,56,735 

3 B.K.NARULA HUF 48,18,465 
 

11.66 48,18,465 
 

11.66 - - - 48,18,465 
 

4 SIDHI NARULA 29,77,070 7.21 30,02,070 7.27 26/07/2019 - 25,000 30,02,070 

5 RIDHI SURI 27,11,500 6.56 27,38,500 6.63 26/07/2019 - 27,000 27,38,500 

6 SUKARMA FINANCE 
LTD. 

53,92,175 13.05 53,40,175 12.93 12/07/2019 52,0
00 

- 53,40,175 

7 XTREMS RETAILS 
LIMITED 

12,15,000 2.94 12,15,000 2.94 - - - 12,15,000 

8 SRIDHI INFRA 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

5,67,750 1.37 5,67,750 1.37 - - - 5,67,750 

 Total  3,09,78,695 74.98 3,09,78,69
5 

74.98    3,09,78,6
95 
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters 
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 
 

Sr. 
 No. 

Name of Shareholder As on  
1.4.2019 

As on 31.3.2020 Date wise increase / decrease in 
shareholding during the year 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Share
s of 
the 

Comp
any 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
Compa

ny 

Date No of 
shares 

disposed 
off 

No. of 
shares 
acquired 

1. Religare Finvest 
Ltd 

9,15,000 2.21 9,15,000 2.21 No Change 

2. Pradeep Kumar 
Jain HUF 

6,70,141 1.62 6,70,141 1.62 No Change 

3. Delfina Securites 
Pvt Ltd 

526270 1.27 526270 1.27 No Change 

4. A L Jain Overseas 
Private Limited 

409820 0.99 409820 0.99 No Change 

5. Nishu Finlease 
Private Limited 

440000 1.06 440000 1.06 No Change 

6. Nandlala 
Securities Pvt Ltd 
 
 

451463 1.09 210788 0.51 10/05/2019 54  

17/05/2019 240050  

07/06/2019 10  

05/07/2019 100  

02/08/2019 10  

09/08/2019 50  

16/08/2019 50  

30/08/2019 150  

06/09/2019 51  

30/09/2019 100  

04/10/2019 50  
7. Pawansut 

Securities Private 
Ltd 

403600 0.98 643600 1.56 17/05/2019 - 240000 

8. N S Sales And 
Distributors 
Private Ltd 

397396 0.96 493396 1.19 03/01/2020 - 96000 

9. Lakhan Securities 
Private Ltd 

366621 0.89 366621 0.89 No Change 

10. O J Securities Pvt 
Ltd 

365925 0.89 365925 0.89 No Change 

11. Samrat Jain 312970 0.76 312970 0.76 No Change 
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(V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

* Ms. Himanshi resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 30th December, 2019. 

S.  
N
o 

For each of the Directors & KMP Shareholding at the 
beginning of the Year (As 
on 1st April 2019) 

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year (As on 
 31st March 2020)  

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

1 Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula, Managing Director 

 At the beginning of the year 7040000 17.04 7040000 17.04 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year   7040000 17.04 

2 Ms. Rita Narula, Whole Time Director 

 At the beginning of the year 6256735 15.14 6256735 15.14 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year   6256735 15.14 

3 Mr. Vineet Aggarwal, Independent Director  

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year - - - - 

4 Ms. Bhavana Sampath Kumar, Independent Director 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year   - - 

5 Mr. Karan Suri, Non-Executive Director 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year   - - 

6 Mr. Sanjay Bana, Chief Financial Officer 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year   - - 

7 Ms. Himanshi, Company Secretary* 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

Datewise increase/decrease in shareholding 
during the year 

No Change 

At the end of the Year   - - 
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V. Indebtness 
 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for 
payment: 
 
Particulars Secured 

Loans  
excluding 
deposits 
 
 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedne
ss 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year – 1st April, 2019 
 
 

    

(i)     Principal Amount 
 

- 4,25,000 - 4,25,000 

(ii)   Interest due but not paid 
 

-               -                  -              -    

(iii) Interest accrued but not due 
 

-               -                  -              -    

Total (i+ii+iii) 
 

- 4,25,000 - 4,25,000 

Change in Indebtedness  during the 
financial year 
 
 

    

·         Addition - 50,000 - 12,75,000 

·         Reduction  - 4,75,000 - 17,00,000 

Net Change - (4,25,000) - (4,25,000) 

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year – 31st March, 2020 
 
 

    

(i)     Principal Amount - - - - 

(ii)   Interest due but not paid - - - - 

(iv) Interest accrued but not due 
 

- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 
 
 
 

- - - - 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

 

S. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors and Designation Total Amount 
(in Rs.) per 
annum 

    Bhushan Kumar 
Narula, Managing 
Director (in Rs.) 
per annum 

Rita Narula 
Whole Time 
Director (in Rs.) 
per annum 

 

1 Gross salary  12.00 
 

5,40,000 
 

5,40,012 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

 - 
  
 

- 
 
 

- 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

  
- 
  

 
- 
 

- 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) 
Income- tax Act, 1961 
 

- 
 - 
 

- 
 
 

- 

2 Stock Option 
 

 - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - 

 
4 
 
 

Commission 
-As % of Profit 
 
 
 
 
 
- as % of profit 

- - - 

Others, specify… 
   

- - - 

5 Others, please specify 
  

- - - 

  Total (A) 
  
  

12.00 5,40,000 5,40,012 

  Ceiling as per the Act  Rs. 60 Lakhs as per Table A of Section II of Schedule V of 
Companies Act, 2013 
 
 
  
  
  
  

 

B. Remuneration to other Directors 

 

1. Independent Directors    
 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of Directors Total Amount  

Bhavana S. Kumar Vineet Aggarwal 

 Fee for attending board 
/committee meetings 

- - - 

 Commission  - - - 

 Others, specify - - - 

Total  (B)(1)    
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors 

Other Non-Executive Directors Mr. Karan Suri Total 

 Fee for attending board /committee 
meetings 

- - 

 Commission  - - 

 Others, please specify - - 

Total (B)(2) - - 

   

Total Managerial Remuneration (excluding sitting fee) (A+B) * Rs. 5,40,012 

 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act:  As per Table A of Section II of Schedule V of 
Companies Act, 2013 
 

 
Rs. 60 Lakhs 

*Fee for attending the Board / Committee meetings is not part of managerial remuneration.  
 
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / 

WTD 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount 

  Himanshi 
(Company Secretary)* 

Sanjay Bana 
(CFO) 
 

1. Gross Salary    

 (a) Salary as per 
provisions 
contained in 
Section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

1,06,129 4,53,420 5,59,549 

 (b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 
17(2) of Income-
tax Act, 1961 

- - - 

 (c) Profits in lieu of 
salary u/s 17(3) of 
Income-tax Act, 
1961  

- - - 

2. Stock Option  - - - 

3. Sweat Equity - - - 

4. Commission  - - - 

- as % of profit - - - 

- others, specify - - - 

5. Others (Contribution 
to PF, NPS and other 

annual 
compensation) 

- - - 

 Total  1,06,129 4,53,420 5,59,549 
*Resigned w.e.f. 30th December, 2019 

 
 

   



26th ANNUAL REPORT _ 2019-20                                     

O S I L                                                                                                                                                            54 | 
P a g e  

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act/ 
Regulation 
of SEBI 

Brief 
Description 

Details of 
Penalty / 
Punishment / 
Compounding  

Authority [RD 
/ NCLT / 
COURT] 

Appeal made, if 
any (give 
details) 

A. COMPANY  

Penalty Regulation 
6(1) 

Non-Compliance 
with the 

requirement to 
appoint a 
Qualified 
Company 

Secretary as the 
Compliance 

Office 

Basic Fine of Rs. 
21,000+ 

GST@18%, i.e., 
3,780= Rs. 

24,780 
 

(Rs. 1,000 per 
day, i.e., from 
13th July, 2020 
to 02nd August, 

2020) 

BSE - 

Punishment  - - - - - 

Compounding  - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS      

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment       

Compounding       

C. OTHER  
OFFICERS IN 
DEFAULT 

     

Penalty      

Punishment       

Compounding       

$ During the Financial Year 2019-20, a notice dated 29th December, 2019 was received under 
Section 143(3) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 to pay the amount due. The IT Department has 
passed an order relating to assessment year 2017-18 demanding INR-56.52 Lakhs. 
 
The Company has paid a sum of Rs. 5, 65,210 (10% of the demand for AY 2017-18) in respect of 
the same.  
  
During the Financial Year under review, Canara Bank Account of the Company has been attached 
vide order issued by Income Tax Department under section 226(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
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DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR REGARDING CONFIRMATION OF 

COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS 

 

To, 

The Members of Orosil Smiths India Limited 

This is to declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief all the Members of the 

Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed their respective 

Compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 

31, 2020. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
                            For Orosil Smiths India Limited 

     Date:  30 November, 2020 
     Place: Noida                              
  

B.K.Narula 
                                                                                                                                (Managing Director) 
                         DIN: 00003629 

  
 

    Registered Office:  
    Hemkunt Chambers, Flat No.620,  
    89, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 
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Annexure B to Directors Report 

 
Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain 
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis- Nil 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis 

The details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis for 

the year ended 31st March, 2020 are as follows: 

S. 
No 

Name(s) of the 
related party and 

nature of 
relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/ transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts / 

arrangements/t
ransactions and 

Salient Terms 

Amount 
paid as 

advances
, if any: 

1. Sukarma Finance 
Limited 
(Associate) 

Rent Received amounting to Rs. 
16,500/- 
 

As per terms and 
conditions of 
Agreement and 
contract  

Nil 

2. Mrs. Rita Narula 
(Whole Time 
Director) 

Rent Paid amounting to Rs.60,000/- 
 

As per terms and 
conditions of 
Agreement and 
contract  

Nil 

4. Xtrems Retails 
Private Limited 

Purchase of gold and Silver (goods) 
amounting to Rs.1,33,103/- 

_ Nil 

5. B.K. Narula HUF Purchase of Gold and Silver (goods) 
amounting to Rs. 17,89,000  
Sale of gold and silver (goods) 
amounting to Rs.12,90,000/-  
 

 
_ 

Nil 

6. Chik Mik Leasing 
& Investment Co. 
Pvt. Ltd. 

Receivables of Rs. 10,32,856/- 
(For Sale of Assets, i.e. Property last 
year) 

_ Nil 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Orosil Smiths India Limited 

 
  
Rita Narula                                                               B.K. Narula 
Whole Time Director                           Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00006096                                                                      DIN: 00003629 
Apartment No. 501, Tower-22,                             Apartment No. 501, Tower-22, 
Common Wealth Games                                           Common Wealth Games 
Village, Delhi 110092                Village, Delhi 110092 

Date: November 30, 2020 
Place: Noida 
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Annexure C to Directors Report 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2020 
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

 

To, 
The Members, 
Orosil Smiths India Limited 
CIN: L74110DL1994PLC059341 
Hemkunt Chambers 89, Flat no. 620  
Nehru place New Delhi-110019  
 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Orosil Smiths India Limited (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 

the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2020 (‘Audit Period') complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company is required to have proper Board-

processes and compliance-mechanism in place, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter along with Annexure 1 attached to this report; 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the 

provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;  

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules made there under;  

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under, as 

amended till date;  

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules/regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment & External Commercial 

Borrowings: (Not Applicable during the Audit Period) 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-  
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended till date; 

 

(c)      The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992, as amended till date;  

 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 

2018 

 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 

Period) 

 

(f)            The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during  the Audit Period); 

 

(g)           The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period) 

 
(h)           The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

 
(i)           The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period); and  

 
(j)           The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period).  

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreement as entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

Limited;  

 

During the period under review and as per the representations and clarifications made, the 

Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 

mentioned above subject to the following observations, 

 

1. “Pursuant to Section 203(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, vacancy created due to 
resignation of Company Secretary of the Company in January 2019, not filled-up by the Board at 
their meeting within a period of six months from the date of such vacancy, however new Company 
Secretary has been appointed before the date of issuance of this report. Also, due to non-
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appointment of Company Secretary within prescribed time limits, Financials Statement of the 
Company for the FY ended 31.03.2019 has not been signed by the Company Secretary, as required 
by Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. Pursuant to Section 203(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, vacancy created due to 
resignation of Company Secretary of the Company in December 2019, not filled-up by the Board 
at their meeting within a period of six months from the date of such vacancy, however new 
Company Secretary has been appointed before the date of issuance of this report. Also, due to 
non-appointment of Company Secretary within prescribed time limits, Financials Statement of the 
Company for the FY ended 31.03.2020 has not been signed by the Company Secretary, as required 
by Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

3. Related party Transactions (Purchase of goods) held between the Company and  BK 
Narula HUF has exceeded the limit prescribed under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the rules framed thereunder, however no approval of member has been taken by the 
Company by passing ordinary resolution. 

4. Re- Appointment of Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula and Ms. Rita Narula, Managing Director 
and Whole Time Director respectively, subject to approval of members in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting, however, the same has not been intimated to BSE under regulation 30 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

5. Pursuant to Regulation 7(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the compliance certificate shall be signed by both the Compliance Officer of the 
listed entity and the authorized representative of the Share Transfer Agent, however, the same 
has been signed by the Managing Director instead of Compliance officer of the Company for the 
compliance certificate of half year ended on 31.03.2020.” 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 

on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, 

the Company has complied with National Gem and Jewellery Authority (NGJA) Act No. 50 of 1993, 

Gems and Jewellery Export Promotion Council (GJEPC) and rules made there under, applicable 

specifically to the Company, however, currently company is not carrying on any business relating 

to Manufacturing of Jewellery. 

 

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that: 

 

i. The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period 

under review, 

ii. Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule 

the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on Agenda were sent in advance 

except two meetings where notice and notes to agenda have been given at a shorter 

period of time than stated above, with the consent of a majority of the Directors, 

which includes one Independent Director and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
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iii. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairperson, all 

decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite 

majority of the members of the Board or committees as the case may be. Further 

there is no case of views of the dissenting members. 

 
Based on the compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of 

the Certificate(s) issued by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), 

 

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the Company has no specific 

event/action having major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the 

above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards & guidelines, if any, etc, except as 

follows:- 

 

1. The Company has received penalty order from Bombay Stock Exchange for 

non-compliance of Regulation 6 relating to appointment of Company 

Secretary of the Company. 

2. There are frequent changes in the position of Company Secretary, which is 

impacting the good corporate governance of the Company. 

 

3. During the year under financial year under review, Canara Bank Account of the 
Company has been attached vide order issued by Income Tax Department 
under Section 226(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

 

  

For Kanchan Gupta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Kanchan Gupta 

COP No. 19810 

ACS No. 45470 

 

Date: December 02, 2020 

Place: Delhi 

 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE 1’ and forms 

an integral part of this report  
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Annexure-1 

 

To, 
The Members, 
Orosil Smiths India Limited 
CIN: L74899DL1994PLC059341 
Hemkunt Chambers 89, Flat no. 620  
Nehru place New Delhi-110019  

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the Company and relied upon the disclosures mentioned in the Financial 

Statement of the Company. Also, we have been informed Labour law compliances are not 

applicable on the Company, due to number of employees are below 10.  

 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 

to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

 
For Kanchan Gupta & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

Kanchan Gupta 

COP No. 19810 

ACS No. 45470 

 

Date: December 02, 2020, 

Place: Delhi 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To,  

The Members of  

Orosil Smiths India Limited  

620, Hemkunt Chambers,  

89, Nehru place, New Delhi 110019 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 

the Directors of Orosil Smiths India Limited having CIN L74110DL1994PLC059341 and having 

registered office at 620, Hemkunt Chambers, 89, Nehru place, New Delhi 110019 (hereinafter 

referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V  Para-C clause 10(i) of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that 

none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 

on 31st March, 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

S. 
No.  

Name of Director  DIN  Date of appointment 

1. Mr. Bhushan Kumar Narula 00003629 01/06/1994 

2. Ms. Rita Narula 00006096 01/06/1994 

3. Ms. Bhavana Sampath Kumar 05260084 28/05/2012 

4. Mr. Vineet Aggarwal 00539344 30/04/2015 

5. Mr. Karan Suri 01193500 09/11/2016 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 

For Kanchan Gupta & Associates 

Kanchan Gupta 

COP No. 19810 

ACS No. 45470 

 

Date: December 05, 2020 

Place: Delhi 
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Annexure D to Directors Report 
 

Details under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

1. The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of 
the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2020: Mr. B.K. Narula, Managing 
Director receives a remuneration of Re. 1 per month and Ms. Rita Narula receives a remuneration 
of Rs. 45000 per month, hence the information is not comparable and not provided. 
 
2. Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:  

S. 
No. 

Name of Director/KMP Designation % increase in 
remuneration during the 
financial year 2019-20 

1. Mr. B.K. Narula Managing Director No Change 

2. Ms. Rita Narula Whole Time Director No Change 

3. Mr. Sanjay Bana Chief Financial Officer No Change 

4. Ms. Himanshi# Company Secretary N.A. 

#Ms. Himanshi resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f 30th December, 2019. Hence, 
% increase in remuneration in Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 is not applicable. 

 
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 

2019-20: NIL. 

4. The no. of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2020 was 7. 

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: Nil 

6. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per remuneration 
policy of the company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Orosil Smiths India Limited 
 
     
Rita Narula                                                                         B.K. Narula 
Whole Time Director                                    Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00006096                                                                               DIN: 00003629 
Apartment No. 501, Tower-22,                         Apartment No. 501, Tower-22, 
Common Wealth Games                                                    Common Wealth Games 
Village Delhi 110092                                                                      Village Delhi 110092 

Date: November 30, 2020 
Place: Noida 
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Managing Director/ CEO and CFO Certification 

To 

The Board of Directors 

 

We, Bhushan Kumar Narula, Managing Director and Sanjay Bana, Chief Financial Officer certify     

that: 

 

a) We have reviewed the Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2020 to the best of our 

knowledge and belief: 
 
i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading;  
 
ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 
b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year ended March 31, 2020 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of 

Conduct.  

 
 

c) i)  There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting 

during the period under reference; 

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year 

requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements; and  
 

   

 
 
Sanjay Bana                               B K Narula 
(Chief Financial Officer)                                                                           (Chairman &Managing Director) 
PAN No. AAHPB3698N                                               DIN No. 00003629 
Add: FC-92, Lajpat Nagar,                                                                                    Add: Apartment No. 501, 

Sahibabad, Ghaziabad,                             Tower-22, Common Wealth  

Uttar Pradesh-201005                           GamesVillage, Delhi - 110092 

 
  Date: November 30, 2020 

  Place: Noida 
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A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

Your Company is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of silver jewellery, gold jewellery as 
well as plain and trading of Silver Articles. The Company launched two brands by the name 
“Kuhjohl” and “Sincere” for semi-precious and precious stones studded in gold and silver. The 
management is planning to move forward in this business of Gold, silver and jewellery and 
other various steps to take forward the business of the Company at greater heights. 
 
Also, the Company expanded its business in Textile area by altering its Memorandum in 
previous Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2019. However, the management 
is still looking into potential opportunities to commence business in this sector and has not 
initiated any activity yet. 

 
B. OPPORTUNITY AND THREATS 

 

Your Company is looking forward for the great opportunity in this line of business of online 

providing platform of selling gold and Silver Jewellery and Garments. It can be a great boost 

to the financials of the company and in the same way the export markets as well as the 

domestic market are gaining momentum.  

 

However, the COVID-19 pandemic, the business of the Company has been impacted. The 
Company is not able to fetch the work orders and requirements of the customers because of 
unavailability of resources, resulting which the Company is not able to do business for the 
said period. 

 

C.  SEGMENT –WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 
 

The Company operates in only single segment. The Company is operating in two brands by 
the name “Kuhjohl” and “Sincere” for semi-precious and precious stones studded in gold and 
silver. 
 
Currently, the Company operating in one segment only and has not yet started its operations 
in Textile Sector. 
 

D. OUTLOOK 
 

The overall outlook of the Company has improved during the Financial Year 2019-20. Your 
Company is looking forward to the new opportunities in the Gems & Jewellery and Textile 
Sector to expand and diversify the business into new areas and looking for a bright future of 
the Company, subject to the stability of the Conditions. 
 
 

Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report 
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E. RISK AND CONCERN 

 
 The prices of the precious metals is the matter of concern for the Company, otherwise 
jewellery is always a value addition.  

 
 The Company in order to identify and mitigate risks to minimize its impact on business, 
ensures that prudent risk management practices are followed during the decision-making 
process. Moreover, any slowdown in the economic growth in India could cause the business of 
the Company to suffer. The growth of industrial production has been variable. 

  
 However, due to global pandemic COVID 19, various restrictions imposed by the Government 
in respect to the pandemic and further consequence of complete lock down announced by the 
Government of India, the operations of the Company also closed substantially, resulting into 
adverse effect on the business.  

 
F. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
Your Company has maintained a proper and adequate system of internal controls. This ensures 
that all Assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition. The Audit Committee and Independent Internal Auditors regularly review the 
operating systems and procedures for efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
Your company’s internal control systems do commensurate with the nature and size of its 
business operations. The company’s Policy and process corrections are undertaken based on 
inputs from the internal auditors. 

 
 

G.   DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 
PERFORMANCE 

 
During the year under review Financial performance of your Company involves the Income 
from operations which is Rs. 167.87 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.157.31 Lakhs). 
 
Profit after Tax (PAT) has been a loss of Rs.26.24 Lakhs as compared to a loss of Rs. 49.18 
Lakhs in previous year. 
 
The directors are making efforts to enhance the business activities and can only hope to regain 
the business activities in future when situation became stable. But we expect business loss to 
reduce, though it is too early to forecast the situation. 

 
 

H. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
  

Your Company is continuously trying to retain the Competencies of Organizational talent, 
contributing towards the enhancement of business activities and success of the Company 
deeming the human resource are very much important for the success of the company. 
 
The Company believes that its people are a key differentiator, especially in knowledge driven, 
competitive and global business environment. Adapting work culture to suit the dynamic 
balancing of people requirements and employee needs is an ongoing process. The Board of 
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Directors of your company would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the 
efforts and contribution made by all the employees of the Company in the challenging 
environment. 

 
Due to COVID-19, the Company’s main business activity majorly is completely shut. The office 
staff (including key personnel) have been allowed to work from home and connected to each 
other by means of available electronic infrastructure.  

 
I. Cautionary Statement 

 
Certain Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the 
Company’s view about the industry, expectations, objectives, etc may be ‘forward looking 
statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ 
from those expressed or implied. Factors like changes in government regulations, tax laws 
and other factors such as industrial relations and economic developments or like current 
pandemic COVID-19, etc. may further influence the Company’s operations. 

 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Orosil Smiths India Limited 
 
 
    
 
Rita Narula                                                                         B.K. Narula 
Whole Time Director                                    Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00006096                                                                               DIN: 00003629 
Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22,                          Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22, 
Common Wealth Games                                                             Common Wealth Games 
Village Delhi 110092                         Village Delhi 110092 
 
 
Date: 30th November, 2020 
Place: Noida 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
TO  
THE MEMBERS OF  
OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED (the 
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss 
and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.  
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the financial statements.  
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
There are no key audit matters requiring information to the members of the company found 
during audit. 
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Emphasis of Matter  
 

1. We draw attention to financial statement, in relation to the uncertainties and potential 
impact of the covid-19 pandemic of the company’s operation and results as assessed by 
the management. The actual results may differ from such estimates depending upon 
future developments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.  

 
2. We draw attention to financial statement, in relation to outstanding balances of trade 

receivable, trade payable and loans and advances which are subject to confirmation and 
subsequent adjustment, if any. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
Other Matter 
 
Investments are stated at the fair value arrived on the basis of last available audited financial 
statement of the invested entity. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance 
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.  
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the  financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
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In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as-a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.  

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.  

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
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the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.  
 

The consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic on financial statement reporting and audit 
engagements are complex and have resulted in challenges for management, those charged with 
governance (TCWG) and auditors. There is an unprecedented level of uncertainty about the 
economy, future earnings and many other inputs that represent fundamental elements of 
financial reporting. The uncertainty arising from the current environment increased the challenge 
in obtaining the sufficient appropriate audit evidence needed to form an independent view about 
the reasonableness of management’s estimates and judgments which present practical 
challenges to the audit engagement. 
 

There are no limitations in audit except measures taken to contain the spread of the COVID-19, 
including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and closure of non-essential services have 
triggered to perform the audit procedures from the remote areas. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:  
 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books.  
 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income/loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.  
 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended.  
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  
 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.  
 
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration, as stipulated to section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act. 
 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India (if any).  
 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  
 
For PNG & CO 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.021910N) 

 

Prabhat Kumar 
Partner  
(Membership No. 087257)  
UDIN: 20087257AAAACZ6571 
Place: Delhi 
Date: June 30, 2020 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED of even date)  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of OROSIL SMITHS INDIA 
LIMITED(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal financial control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the ICAI.  

 

For PNG & CO 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.021910N)  

 

 

Prabhat Kumar 
Partner  
(Membership No. 087257)  
UDIN: 20087257AAAACZ6571 

 

Place: Delhi 

Date: June 30, 2020 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our report to the Members of OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED of even date)  
 

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipments:  
 
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipments. 
 

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant & 
Equipment by which Property, Plant & Equipment are verified in a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over the period of 3 year. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us 

and based on the examination of the record, we report that, the title deeds of  all the 
immovable properties of land and buildings are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date. 
 

2. In respect of Inventories 
The physical verification of inventory excluding for goods-in-transit & stocks with third parties 
has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management during the year. The 
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were 
not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts. 
 

3. In respect of Loans given by the company 
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted loans, secured and unsecured to 
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act‟). (Register of contracts and 
arrangements in which director are interested). Therefore, reporting under paragraph 3(iii) is 
not applicable. 
 

4. In respect of Loans to Directors and Investments made by the Company 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not granted any loan or 
provided any guarantees or security to any party covered under section 185 of the act. The 
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of 
grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.  
 

5. In respect of Deposits 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there 
under apply. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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6. In respect of maintenance of Cost Records 

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not required 
to maintain cost records as specified under subsection (1) of the section 148 of the act in 
respect to its products. 
 

7. In Respect of Statutory Due  
According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:  
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, The Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities 
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the particulars of dues amounting to Rs. 56.52/-- Lakhs, in 
respect of income tax material statutory dues were in arrearswhich have not been 
deposited on account of dispute, are as follows: 

 
 

Nature of 
the statute  

Nature of 
dues  

Forum where 
Dispute is 
Pending  

Period to 
which the  
Amount 
Relates  

Disputed 
Amount 
(in Lakhs 
) 

 

 

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax CIT (A) AY 2017-
2018 

56.52 

 
8. In respect of Repayment of Loan 

According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government as at the balance sheet 
date. The company has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company for debenture. 
 

9. In respect of utilization of IPO, further public offer & term loans 
The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 

10. In respect of Reporting of Fraud 
On the basis of verification of records and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 
 

11. In respect of approval of Managerial Remuneration 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration,Director(s) during the year as 
stipulated to section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, 
 

12. In respect of reporting in a Nidhi Company 
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.  
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13. In respect of Related Party Transactions 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties have been entered 
into by the company in its ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis and are in 
complied with provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under 
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 related party disclosures specified under section 
133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies ( Accounts) Rules  2014. 
 

14. In respect of reporting of Private placement / preferential allotment of shares / 

debentures 

According to the records of Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment 

or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 

under review and complied with provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order not 

applicable.  

15. In respect of reporting of Non-Cash Transactions 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on our examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly 
reporting under paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable 
 

16. In respect of reporting of Registration u/s 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934 

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Therefore, provisions of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not 

applicable. 

 
 
For PNG & CO.,  
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.021910N)  
 
Prabhat Kumar 
Partner  
(Membership No.087257)  
UDIN: 20087257AAAACZ6571 
 
Place: Delhi 
Date: June 30, 2020 
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OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED 

Regi. Add.: HEMKUNT CHAMBERS, FLAT NO. 620, 89, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHI 110019 

CIN L74110DL1994PLC059341 

   BBalance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020 
 

Statement of Assets and Liabilities 
                                                 (Amount in Rs.) 

 

  
 

 
 

Particulars  

Schedule 
No. 

 As at 31st March, 
2020 

 As at 31st March, 
2019  

 Audited   Audited  

A. ASSETS  
 

  
 

  Non-current assets  
  

 

  a) Property, plant and equipment 
 

   1 
 

13,411,337 
 

14,540,365 
  b) Intangible assets     2 5,487 9,038 

  c) Financial assets 
  

 

  
 - Investments 
 

     3   2,103,247 2,554,078 

   d) Other Financial Assets     4 437,822 428,920 

    
 

15,957,893 17,532,402 

  Current assets  
  

 

  Inventories  5 11,881,854 13,653,637 

  Financial assets 
  

 

   - Trade receivables 6 3,43,377 6,17,624 

   - Cash and cash equivalents 7 3,21,545 4,12,991 

   -  Other financial assets  8 70,943 3,01,594 

  Other current assets  9 1,413,412 1,495,568 

   Total Current Assets 
 

140,031,130 16,481,412 

  TOTAL ASSETS 
 

29,989,023 34,013,814 

B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
  

 

  Equity 
  

 

  Equity Share capital      10 52,200,000 52,200,000 

 
Other equity 11 (22,991,208) (20,206,671) 

 
Total Equity 

 
29,208,792 31,993,329 

 
Liabilities 

  

 

 
Non-current liabilities 

  

 

 
Long term provisions 12 463,853 303,560 

   
463,853 303,560 

 
Current liabilities 

  

 

 
Financial liabilities 

  

 

 
- Borrowings 13 - 4,25,000 

 
Short-term provisions 14 14,968 10,457 

 
Other current liabilities 15 301,410 1,281,468 

 
Total Current Liabilities 

 
3,16,378 1,716,925 

 
Total Liabilities 

 
7,80,231 2,020,485 

 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 
29,989,023 34,013,814 
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The accompanying notes are integral part of these standalone financial statements 

As per our Report of even date 
 

                 For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
       
 
Sanjay Bana                                                                                                                                     B.K. Narula 
Chief Financial Officer                                                                                               Chairman & Managing Director 
FC-92, Lajpat Nagar, Sahibabad,                                                                                                         DIN: 00003629 
Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh-201005                                                                  Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22,  
                                                                                                                                                    Common Wealth Games 
                                          Village Delhi 110092 
 
 
                                                                    
 
 

Rita Narula  
                                                                                                                                                       Whole Time Director 

                                                                                                                             DIN:00006096                                         
 Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22, 

 Common Wealth Games                                                                                                               
Village Delhi 110092 

                                                 
 
For PNG & CO., 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.021910N)  
 
 
Prabhat Kumar 
Partner  
(Membership No.087257)  
UDIN: 20087257AAAACZ6571 
 
Place: Delhi 
Date: June 30, 2020 
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OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED 

Regi. Add.: HEMKUNT CHAMBERS, FLAT NO. 620, 89, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHI 110019 

CIN L74110DL1994PLC059341 

                                 Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March, 2020            (Amount in Rs.) 

  
  

Particulars Schedule No. 

For the period 
ended 

For the period 
ended 

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 

  Income       

I Revenue from operations 16 
                                
16,787,311  

                                     
15,731,895  

II Other income 17 
                                          
92,875  

                                            
258,819  

III Total income (I+II)   
                                
16,880,186  

                                     
15,990,714  

          

IV Expenses       

  Cost of material Consumed 18 
                                   
6,625,797  

                                        
8,867,991  

  Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 19 
                                   
5,991,888  

                                        
4,786,044  

  Changes in Inventories of Finished goods and stock in trade 20 
                                       
525,648  

                                            
298,514  

  Employee benefits expense 21 
                                   
1,493,369  

                                        
1,374,394  

  Finance costs 22 
                                          
10,408  

                                               
58,033  

  Depreciation and amortization 1&2 
                                   
1,598,001  

                                        
1,665,825  

  Other Expenses 23 
                                   
3,259,426  

                                        
2,757,986  

  Total expense (IV)   
                                
19,504,536  

                                     
19,808,786  

V 
Profit/(loss) before exceptional  items and tax (I-II)   

                                 
(2,624,350) 

                                      
(3,818,072) 

VI 
Exceptional Items 

  
                                                       
-    

                                        
1,100,389  

VII Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations (V-VI)   
                                 
(2,624,350) 

                                      
(4,918,460) 

VIII 

Income taxes       

Current tax   
                                                       
-    

                                                            
-    

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods   
                                                       
-    

                                                            
-    

Deferred tax (credit)/charge   
                                                       
-    

                                                            
-    

Income tax expense   
                                                       
-    

                                                            
-    

IX (Loss)/Profit for the period (VII-VIII)   
                                 
(2,624,350) 

                                      
(4,918,460) 

X Other Comprehensive Income       

  A  (i)  Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   
                                     
(540,896) 

                                             
(13,679) 

  
     (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss       

  B  (i)  Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss       

  
     (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit 
or loss       

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (X+XI)   
                                 
(3,165,245) 

                                      
(4,932,139) 

  Earning per equity share of ₹ 10 each  (for continuing opreation)       

  Basis (₹)   
                              

(0.06) 
                                 

(0.12) 

  Diluted (₹)       

  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES                                             24 to 38     
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The accompanying notes are integral part of these standalone financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date. 
 

           
        For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
       
 
Sanjay Bana                                                                                                                                        B.K. Narula 
Chief Financial Officer                                                                                                Chairman & Managing Director 
FC-92, Lajpat Nagar, Sahibabad,                                                                                                            DIN: 00003629 
Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh-201005                                                                  Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22,  
                                                                                                                                                    Common Wealth Games 
                                          Village Delhi 110092 
 
 
                                                                    
 
 

Rita Narula  
                                                                                                                                                       Whole Time Director 

                                                                                                                           DIN:00006096                                         
   Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22, 

       Common Wealth Games                                                                                                          
Village Delhi 110092 

                                                 
 
For PNG & CO., 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.021910N)  
 
 
Prabhat Kumar 
Partner  
(Membership No.087257)  
UDIN: 20087257AAAACZ6571 
 
Place: Delhi 
Date: June 30, 2020 
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OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED 

Regi. Add.: HEMKUNT CHAMBERS, FLAT NO. 620, 89, NEHRU PLACE, NEW DELHI 110019 

CIN L74110DL1994PLC059341 

        
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020                                              (Amount in Rs.)        

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:     

Profit Before Tax (2,624,350) (4,918,460) 

Adjustments for: 
    Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,598,001 1,665,825 

  Remeasurement of Gain/ (Loss) on Actuarial Valuation (90,065) 86,920 

  Finance cost - 58,033 

  Interest (Income) (12,498) (18,275) 

  Other (Income) (23,700) (66,000) 

  Income tax receivable written off - (323,287) 

Operating profit before working capital changes (1,152,612) (3,515,245) 

Adjustments for: 
    (Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 274,247 1,079,416 

  (Increase)/decrease in other assets 303,905 983,306 

  (Increase)/decrease in other liabilities (980,058) 1193151.08 

  (Increase)/decrease in inventories 1,771,783 834,267 

  (Increase)/decrease in trade & other payable - (67,956) 

  (Increase)/decrease in provisions 164,804 (11,581) 

  382,069 495,357 

  Less: Direct tax paid (net of refund) - - 

  382,069 495,357 

  Less: Exceptional items 
  Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from operating activities after 

exceptional items 382,069 495,357 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
    Purchasse of property,plant and equipment (84,710) - 

  Rental Income 16,500 66,000 

  Interest received 12,498 18,275 

  Dividend Received 7,200 - 

Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from investing activities (48,512) 84,275 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
    Proceeds from short term borrowings (425,000) (542,580) 

  Interest paid - (58,033) 

Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from financing activities (425,000) (600,613) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Bank balance (91,443) (20,980) 

  Add: Cash and cash equivalence at beginning of the year 412,991 433,972 

  Cash and cash equivalence at end of the year 321,548 412,992 

  
  Cash and Cash Equivalence as per above comprises of the following 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

Cash and Cash Equivalence (Refer Schedule No. 7) 321,545 412,991 

The accompanying notes are integral part of these standalone financial statements. 

As per our Report of even date. 
 

           



 

 

OROSIL SMITHS INDIA LIMITED 

CIN: L74110DL1994PLC059341  

 

83 | P a g e                                                                O S I L  
 
 

Notes: 
1.       The cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Indian 
Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows. 

 
        For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
       
 
Sanjay Bana                                                                                                                                     B.K. Narula 
Chief Financial Officer                                                                                            Chairman & Managing Director 
FC-92, Lajpat Nagar, Sahibabad,                                                                                                        DIN: 00003629 
Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh-201005                                                                  Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22,  
                                                                                                                                                    Common Wealth Games 
                                          Village Delhi 110092 
 
 
                                                                    
 
 

Rita Narula  
                                                                                                                                                       Whole Time Director 

                                                                                                                          DIN: 00006096                                         
Add: Apartment No. 501, Tower-22, 

       Common Wealth Games                                                                                                           
Village Delhi 110092 

                                                 
 
For PNG & CO., 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.021910N)  
 
 
Prabhat Kumar 
Partner  
(Membership No.087257)  
UDIN: 20087257AAAACZ6571 
 
Place: Delhi 
Date: June 30, 2020 
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 Notes to Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020                                                                                                                    (Amount in Rs.)      

 
 

          

        
 

 
2. Other Intangible Assets 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       (Amount in ₹)  

  COST  DEPRECIATION  WDV 

Particulars 
Total As on 
01.04.2019 

Additi
on 

Sales / 
Disposal 

Total As on 
31.03.2020 

 As On 
1.04.2019 

 For 
the 
year  

Adjustme
nt 

Total As On 
31.03.2019 

 As on 
31.03.202

0  

 As on 
31.03.2019  

Intangible Assets                     

Web Portal       3,701,140  
              
-            -    

      
3,701,140  

     
3,693,401  

          
3,041                  -         3,696,443  

            
4,698                  7,739  

Softwares       1,524,830            -    
      
1,524,830  

     
1,523,530  

             
511                  -         1,524,041  

               
789                  1,300  

 Total        5,225,970  
              
-            -    

      
5,225,970  

     
5,216,932  

          
3,552                  -         5,220,484  

            
5,487                  9,038  

 Previous Year        5,225,970  
              
-            -    

      
5,225,970  

     
5,210,906  

          
6,026                  -         5,216,932  

            
9,038                15,064  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

1. Property, plant and equipment 
  

(Amount in ₹) 

  COST  DEPRECIATION  WDV 

Particulars 
Total As on 
01.04.2019 

Addition 
Sales / 

Disposal 

Total As 
on 

31.03.202
0 

 As On 
1.04.2019 

 For the 
year  

Adjustme
nt 

Total As On 
31.03.2020 

 As on 
31.03.202

0  

 As on 
31.03.2019  

                      

Tangible 
Assets 

      
  

  
  

    
  

  

Land 
      
4,152,041                -            -    

      
4,152,041                      -    

                 
-                    -                        -    

    
4,152,041          4,152,041  

Building 
   
22,607,499                -            -    

   
22,607,49
9  

   
16,814,753  

     
550,311                  -      17,365,064  

    
5,242,434          5,792,745  

Lease Hold 
Imrovements 

      
1,141,237                -            -    

      
1,141,237       1,141,237  

                 
-                    -         1,141,237  

                   
-                           -    

Plant & 
Machinery 

   
13,527,875       43,661          -    

   
13,571,53
6  

   
11,297,607  

     
251,626  

     
380,710    11,168,522  

    
2,403,014          2,230,268  

Furniture & 
Fittings 

      
9,021,617                -            -    

      
9,021,617       8,444,303  

     
149,467                  -         8,593,770  

       
427,847             577,314  

Vehicle 
      
6,201,585                -            -    

      
6,201,585       4,935,869  

     
395,283                  -         5,331,152  

       
870,433          1,265,716  

Office 
Equipments 

      
6,879,695       23,983          -    

      
6,903,678       6,361,154  

     
240,308                  -         6,601,462  

       
302,216             518,541  

Computers 
      
2,155,651       17,066          -    

      
2,172,717       2,151,911  

          
7,454                  -         2,159,365  

          
13,352                  3,740  

                      

 Total  
   
65,687,200       84,710          -    

   
65,771,91
0  

   
51,146,834  

  
1,594,44
9  

     
380,710    52,360,573  

  
13,411,33
7        14,540,365  

 Previous 
Year  

   
65,687,200                -            -    

   
65,687,20
0  

   
49,487,035  

  
1,659,80
0                  -      51,146,834  

  
14,540,36
7        16,200,165  
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Non Current Financial assets 

3 
Investment 
  

As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  
Investment in Equity 
    

  

  Sridhi Infra Pvt. Ltd. (Unquoted share 3200000 of Rs.1 each)                   2,064,964             2,513,287  

  Citizen Co-Operative Bank Ltd. (Unquoted share 800 of Rs 10 Each)                         38,283                   40,791  

  
  
                   2,103,247             2,554,078  

 

4 
Other financial assets 
  

As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  
Unsecured and considered goods 
    

  

  Security Deposits                       153,737                154,237  

  Deposit with Tax Authority                       284,085                274,684  

  
  
                       437,822                428,920  

 

5 Inventories As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Raw Material                  2,194,719             3,440,855  

  Finished Goods                  9,687,135           10,212,783  

                   11,881,854           13,653,637  

 

Current Financial assets 

6 Trade receivables As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Unsecured and considered goods     

  Trade Receivables     

  More than six Month                      343,377                617,624  

  Other                                 -                              -    

  Receivables from related parties                                 -                              -    

                         343,377                617,624  

 

7 Cash and cash equivalent As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Cash in hand                      294,704                481,819  

  Cash In Bank balance     

  Balances with banks:     

  – On current accounts                        26,841                 (68,828) 

        

                         321,545                412,991  

 

8 Other Assets As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Unsecured and considered goods     

  Advance to supplier                        70,943                301,594  

                           70,943                301,594  

 

9 Other current assets 
As at '31 March 2020 

 As at '31 March 
2019  

  Unsecured and considered goods     

   Income Tax Receivable                          1,828                     3,511  

  GST Input Receivable                      328,530                300,250  

  Prepaid Expenses                        50,197                   58,951  

  Others                  1,032,857             1,132,857  

                     1,413,412             1,495,568  
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10 Share Capital       

          

a. 

Authorised Share Capital 

As at '31 March 
2020  

As at '31 March 
2019 

As at '31 March 
2018 

  44,116,000 equity shares of Rs.1 each      44,116,000           44,116,000     44,116,000  

  10,88,400 Preference shares of Rs.10 each      10,884,000           10,884,000     10,884,000  

         55,000,000           55,000,000     55,000,000  

          

b. 

Issued equity capital 

 As at '31 March 
2020   

 As at '31 March 
2019  

 As at '31 March 
2018  

  Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid       

  41,316,000 equity shares of Rs. 1 each      41,316,000           41,316,000     41,316,000  

  Issued during the year                        -                              -                         -    

         41,316,000           41,316,000     41,316,000  

  10,88,400 Preference shares of Rs. 10 each      10,884,000           10,884,000     10,884,000  

  Issued during the year                        -                              -                         -    

         10,884,000           10,884,000     10,884,000  

         52,200,000           52,200,000     52,200,000  
 

c. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year  
  

  Equity Share 
  

    As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

    Nos. Amount  Nos. Amount 

  At the beginning of the year 41,316,000 41,316,000  41,316,000 41,316,000 

  Issued during the year -   -  
  At the end of the year 41,316,000 41,316,000  41,316,000 41,316,000 

            

  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year  
  

  Preference Share  

   As at '31 March 2020 As at '31 March 2019 

   Nos.  Amount Nos. Amount 

  At the beginning of the year 1,088,400  10,884,000 1,088,400 10,884,000 

  Issued during the year      
  At the end of the year 1,088,400  10,884,000 1,088,400 10,884,000 

            
 

d. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares   

  The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share.  

  Terms/ rights attached to Preference shares  

  The company has issued 10,88,400,3.5% Optional Convertable Cumulative Preference Share ("OCCPS") of face value Rs. 10/- each 
at a premium of Rs. 10/- each, convertible after 5 years from the date of issue. However, OCCPS holders does not have an option 
to convert into equity share at an earlier date. Now, These shares are convertible at any time. The OCCPS Share holders have a 
right to receive dividend prior to the equity share holder. The dividend proposed by the Borard of Directors if any on the OCCPS is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual general meeting, except in case of intrim dividend.  In the event of 
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 
distribution to all preference shareholders. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

 

e. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company  
  

     As at '31 March 2020 As at '31 March 2019 

    Nos.  % Holding  Nos.  % Holding  

  B. K. Narula            7,040,000  17.04%            7,040,000  17.04% 

  B. K. Narula (HUF)            4,818,465  11.66%            4,818,465  11.66% 

  Rita Narula            6,256,735  15.14%            6,256,735  15.14% 

  Sidhi Narula         3,002,070  7.27%            2,977,070  7.21% 

  Ridhi Narula            2,738,500  6.63%            2,711,500  6.56% 

  Sukarma Finance Ltd. 5,340,175 12.93%            5,392,175  13.05% 
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11 Other Equity 
As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Retained earnings       (38,192,804)        (35,408,268) 

  Capital Reserve           4,317,600             4,317,600  

  Securities premium account         10,884,000           10,884,000  

          (22,991,204)        (20,206,668) 

 

12 Long term provisions As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Provision for leave  encashment                  44,057                   37,801  

  Provision for gratuity                419,796                265,759  

                  463,853                303,560  

 

  Borrowings As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

13 Current Borrowings     

  Term Loan from Bank                           -                              -    

  From Director                          -                  425,000  

                             -                  425,000  

 

14 Short term provisions As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Provision for leave  encashment                    2,913                     2,641  

  Provision for gratuity                  12,055                     7,816  

        

                    14,968                   10,457  

 

15 Other current Liabilities As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Duties & Taxes                   8,195                     4,250  

  Other Liability               293,215                   77,218  

  Advance From Customers                          -               1,200,000  

                  301,410             1,281,468  

 

16. Revenue from operations 
As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Sale of Product         16,787,311           15,731,895  

            16,787,311           15,731,895  

 

17. Other income As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Interest Income                 12,391                   18,275  

  Service Income                 50,000                 173,000  

  Interest on Income tax refund                       107                            -    

  Rental Income                 16,500                   66,000  

  Liabilities written Back                    6,677                     1,544  

  Dividend Income                     7,200                            -    

                    92,875                 258,819  

18. Cost of materials consumed As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Opening Stock     

  Raw Materials            3,440,855             3,976,608  

               3,440,855             3,976,608  

        

  Add : Purchase     

  Raw Materials            5,374,811             8,311,221  

  Consumables                    4,850                   21,016  

               5,379,661             8,332,237  

        

  Less : Closing Stock     

  Raw Materials            2,194,719             3,440,855  

               2,194,719             3,440,855  

  Cost of Materials Consumed            6,625,797             8,867,991  
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19. Purchase of Stock-in-trade As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Purchase             5,991,888             4,786,044  

               5,991,888             4,786,044  

 

20. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade  

  Inventories at the end of the year As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Finished Goods            9,687,135           10,212,783  

               9,687,135           10,212,783  

  Inventories at the beginning of the year     

  Finished Goods         10,212,783           10,511,296  

            10,212,783           10,511,296  

  Net (Increase) / Decrease               525,648                 298,514  

 

21. Employee benefits expense 
As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019 

  Salaries, wages and bonus                1,447,770          1,333,735  

  Staff welfare expenses                      45,599                40,659  

                   1,493,369          1,374,394  

 

22. Finance costs As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Interest on borrowings                               -                  48,012  

  Bank Charges                      10,408                10,021  

                         10,408                58,033  

 

23. Other expenses As at '31 March 2020  As at '31 March 2019  

  Payment to auditor's     

      -Tax Audit                      15,000                15,000  

      - Statutory Audit                      57,500                57,500  

  Communication expenses                    100,119                93,819  

  Director's Remuneration                    540,012              540,012  

  Meeting Expenses                      42,733                31,316  

  Electricity & water Charges                    341,714              336,598  

  Insurance                       80,527              101,769  

  Bad debts                               -                        900  

  Other Interest                            890                      245  

  Rate & Taxes                      18,500                  7,500  

  Office maintenance                    115,595              178,664  

  Provision for Gratuity and leave encashment                      74,739                75,340  

  Repair & maintenance other                      50,848                70,025  

  Rent                      60,000              120,000  

  Printing & Stationery                      54,767                50,070  

  Sundry Balance W/off                    301,592                         -    

  Legal & professional charges                    164,450              120,950  

  Membersheep fees & Subscription                    318,000              283,650  

  Vehicle Running & maint.                    208,710              189,967  

  Registrar & Transfer Agent expenses                    100,000                         -    

  Sales Promotion and marketing Expenses                    312,664              141,638  

  Security charges                    288,000              288,000  

  Short & excess                               (1)                     (32) 

  Traveling and conveyance                        5,647                  6,554  

  Vat appeal Fees                               -                    2,815  

  Miscellaneous expenses                        7,421                45,686  

                   3,259,426          2,757,986  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31st March, 2020 

Note:- 24 – STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Background 

Orosil Smiths India Limited was incorporated in June 01, 1994 as per Companies Act, 1956, 
The Company is operating in Gems and Jewellery sector. 

II. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

(a) Basis of preparation 

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statement have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for 
the following: 

1) Defined benefit plans – plan assets measures at fair value; 

2) Investment in Equity share of the companies measures at fair value.  

(iii) Current non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in 
the Schedule III to the Act. 

(iv) Rounding of amounts 

All amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 
to the nearest Rupees as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise 
stated. 

(b) Use of estimates and judgments 

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and 
various other assumptions and factor (including expectations of future events) that 
the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference 
between actual result and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results 
are known/ materialized. 
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The said estimates are based on the facts and event, that existed as at the reporting 
date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions 
existing as at the reporting date. 

(c) Property, plant and equipment 

The Company had applied for the onetime transition exemption of considering the 
carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS. 
Hence regarded as historical cost. 

Freehold Land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are 
stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a 
separate asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation on Building, Plant and Equipment, is provided on a pro-rata basis on 
written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful life of assets. Leasehold 
land is amortized over the period of lease. Leasehold improvements are amortized 
over the period of lease or estimated useful life, whichever is lower. The company 
depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, and management believe that useful life of assets 
are same as those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. The residual values are not 
more than 5% of the original cost of the assets. The assets residual values and useful 
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In 
case of pre-owned assets, the useful life is estimated on a case to case basis. Gain and 
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are included in the statement of Profit and Loss. 

Type of Assets Block 

Use full 
life (In 
Year) 

WDV Rate 

Vehicle 8 31.23% 

Building (other than factory buildings) other than RCC 
Frame Structure 30 9.50% 

Computer 3 63.16% 

Software 6 39.30% 

Land 0   

Furniture & Fittings 10 25.89% 

Office Equipment 5 45.07% 

Plant & Machinery 15 18.10% 
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(d) Intangible Assets  

Software are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairments, if any. 
Gain and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in the statement of Profit and Loss.  

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents includes cash on hand, bank overdraft, deposits held at call with financial 
institution, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subjected to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(f) Inventories 

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and spares, Finished Goods 
and Stock-in-trade are stated ‘at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower’. 
Goods-in-Transit are stated ‘at cost’. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of 
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Cost formulae used are ‘First-in-First-out’. Due allowance is 
estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary. 

(g) Investments and other financial assets 

(i) Classification 

The company classifies its financial assets in following measurement categories: 

(1) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other 
comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and 

(2) Those measured at amortized cost. 

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 

(ii) Measurement 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value, 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and 
Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity instruments: 

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates at fair value either through other comprehensive income, 
or through the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based 
on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the 
entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology 
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 
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(iv) Significant Estimates:  

The carrying value of exposure is determined by an independent valuer. The 
company uses judgment to select from variety of methods and make assumptions 
which are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting 
period. 

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to 
amortization and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently if event or 
changing circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested 
for impairment whenever event or changing circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by 
which the assets carrying amount exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an assets fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For 
the purpose of assessing impairment assets are grouped at the lowest level for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflow which are largely independent of the cash 
inflow from other assets or group of assets (cash generating unit). Non – financial 
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal 
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

(i) Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use 
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax 
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights 
under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. 
 
Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held 
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal 
Company classified as held for sale continue to be recognized. 
 

(j) Income Tax 
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current 
period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes 
in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to 
unused tax losses. 
 
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are excepted to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is 
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and 
unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 
to utilize those temporary differences and losses. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to 
the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively. 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the 
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax 
during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the 
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no 
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period. 
 
Tax expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars Year ended 31st 
March, 2020 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2019 

Current Tax   

Current tax on taxable income for the year NIL NIL 

Total current tax expense Nil NIL 

   

Deferred tax   

Deferred tax charge/(credit) NIL NIL 

MAT credit (taken)/utilized NIL NIL 

Total deferred income tax expenses/(benefit) NIL NIL 

   

Tax in respect of earlier years NIL NIL 

Total income tax expenses NIL NIL 

 
(k) Manufacturing & Operating expenses 

The company classifies separately manufacturing and operating expenses which are 
directly linked to manufacturing and service activities of the group. 
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(l) Borrowings 
Borrowing are initially recognized at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at 
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and 
the redemption amount is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the 
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 
 
Preference share, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified 
as liabilities. The dividend on theses preference share is recognized in Statement of 
Profit and Loss as finance costs. 

 
(m) Segment Reporting 

The Company operates under single operating segment and hence requirement of 
Segment reporting is not applicable.  
 

(n) Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete 
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the period which they are incurred and reported in finance costs. 

 
(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognized only when there is present obligation, as a result of past 
event, and when a reliable estimate of amount of obligation can be made at the 
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust 
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are 
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 
 
Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly 
within the control of the Company or 
 

• Present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate 
of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

 
Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefit is 
probable, related asset is disclosed. 

(p) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of 
control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or 
services.  

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the 
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the 
customer exceeds one year. Therefore, it does not adjust any of the transaction prices 
for the time value of money. 

Revenue from services are recognized as per the contractual arrangement. 
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Other Income 

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized on the time proportion basis taking into 
account outstanding and the rate applicable. 

Dividend income is recognized when right to receive payment is established. 

(q) Post-employment, long term and short-term employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

Provided fund: Contribution towards provided fund for certain employee is made to 
the regulatory authorities, where the company has no further obligation. Such 
benefits are classified as Defined contribution schemes as the company does not carry 
and further obligation, apart from the contribution made on a monthly basis.  

Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity is post-employment benefit defined under The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
and in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability is recognized in the financial 
statement in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the reporting date, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or 
losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calculated at or near 
the reporting date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial 
assumption are credit or charged to statement of OCI in the year in which such gains 
or losses are determined. 

Other long-term employee benefits 

Liability in respect of compensated absence is estimated on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit cost method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial 
assumption are charged to statement of profit & loss in the year in which such gains or 
losses are determined. 

Short-term employee benefits 

Expenses in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of amount 
paid or payable for the period during which service rendered by the employee. 

(r) Foreign currency transaction 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statement is presented in Indian rupee (INR), Which is Company’s 
function and presentation currency. 

 

(ii) Transaction and balances 

Transaction in foreign currencies is recognized at the prevailing exchange on the 
transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency 
transaction are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at 
the year-end exchange rate and resultant exchange difference is recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.  

(s) Recognition of deferred tax assets 

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on assessment of 
the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can 
be utilized.   

(t) Earnings per share 

Basis earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholder (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted 
average number of equity share outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholder and weighted average number of share 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity share. 

(u) The preparation of company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities, and related disclosures. 

Significant management judgements and estimates:  

The following are significant management’s judgments and estimates in applying the 
accounting policies of the company that have the most significant effect on the 
financial statements. 

1) Deferred tax assets recognition is based on an assessment of the probability of 
future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. 

2) The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets require 
assessments of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

3) At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over 
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding 
receivables and advances. 

4) Management’s estimates of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) is based on a 
number of critical assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, discount rate 
and anticipation of future salary increase. Variation in this assumption may 
significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. 

5) Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial 
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves 
developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants 
would price the instruments. The management uses the best information 
available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual price that would be 
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date. 

6) Management reviews its estimates of useful lives of depreciable/amortizable 
assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. 
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence.  
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23. Contingent Liabilities 

-The company has given Bank Guarantee to Sales Tax authorities amounting to Rs. 
115,000/-       As at March 31, 2020 (Previous year Rs. 1, 15,000/-). 

-The Income Tax Department relating to A.Y 2017-18 wherein order demanding INR 56.52 
lakh was passed by Income Tax Department, Delhi.   

24. Related Party Disclosures 

(A) List of Related Parties and Relationship 

Key Management Personnel 

Mr. B.K. Narula, Managing Director 

Mrs. Rita Narula, Whole Time Director 

Mrs. Bhavana Sampath Kumar, Director 

Mr. Vineet Aggarwal, Director 

Mr. Karan Suri, Director 

Mrs. Himanshi Arora, Company Secretary (Resigned on 30.12.2019) 

Mr. Sanjay Bana, CFO 

Relative of key Management Personnel 

Ms. Ridhi Suri 

Entities over which key Management Personnel are able to exercise significant influence 

B. K. Narula (HUF) 

Xtrems Retails Pvt. Ltd. 

Sridhi Infra Pvt. Ltd. 

Chik Mik Leasing & Investment Co Pvt Ltd 

Sukarma Finance Ltd. 

(B) The following transaction were carried out with related party in the ordinary course 
of business 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 

Remuneration In Rs.         In Rs.  

Mr. B.K. Narula 12 12 

Mrs. Rita Narula 5,40,000 5,40,000 

   

Salary, Bonus & Conveyance   
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Mr. Sanjay Bana 4,53,420 4,53,420 

Ms. Shefali Kesarwani NIL 1,90,516 

Ms. Himanshi  106129 NIL 

   

Rent paid   

Mrs. Rita Narula 60,000 1,20,000 

   

Rent Received   

Sukarma Finance Ltd. 16,500 66,000 

   

Advance from customer   

B.K.Narula (HUF) NIL 12,00,000 

   

Loan taken    

Rita Narula 50,000 425,000 

   

Loan Repayment   

Rita Narula 4,75,000 NIL 

   

Sales   

B.K.Narula (HUF) 12,90,000 13,90,367 

Ms. Ridhi Suri NIL 4,56,829 

Xtrems Retails Ltd NIL 1,46,775 

   

Purchase   

Xtrems Retails Pvt. Ltd 1,33,103 1,39,050 

B.K.Narula (HUF) 17,89,000 NIL 

   

Sale of assets   

Chik mik leasing & Investment Co Pvt Ltd NIL 10,32,856 
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Receivable    

Chik mik leasing & Investment Co Pvt Ltd 10,32,856 10,32,856 

 

      25. Capital and other Commitment 

There are no Capital and other commitment outstanding as at March 31, 2020. 

26. Remuneration to Director  Current Year   Previous Year 

     5,40,012/-   5,40,012/-  

27. Amount Paid to Auditors   Current Year   Previous Year 

   (a) As Audit Fees   57,500/-   57,500/- 

   (b) For other service                                 15,000/-                                          15,000/-   15,000/-   15,000/- 15,000/-   15,000/-  

28. Earnings per Share 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 

Number of share outstanding during the year 4,13,16,000 4,13,16,000 

Net profit after tax available for equity 
Shareholder (rupees) 

(26,24,350) (49,18,461) 

Basis/Diluted earning per equity share (in 
Rupees) 

(0.06) (0.12) 

 

29. Employee Benefits 

Defined Benefits plan 

(i) Gratuity 

The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972. Employee who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years 
are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 
retirement/termination is the employee’s last drawn basis salary per month 
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of 
service. The scheme is unfunded. 

The following table summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amount recognized in the balance 
sheet. 

 

Particulars 

 

Gratuity Benefits 

As at 31 March 
2020 

As at 31 March 
2019 
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Total Expenses recognized in the 
Statement of profit & Loss 

68,211/- 66,956/- 

Actual contribution and benefit 
payments for year 

  

Actual benefit payments - - 

Actual contributions - - 

Other comprehensive (income)/- 
expenses 

90,065/- (63,972/-) 

Net Asset / (liability) recognized in the 
Balance Sheet (opening) 

(2,73,575/-) (2,70,591/-) 

Present value of defined benefit 
obligation 

- - 

Fair value of plan assets - - 

Funded status [surplus /(Deficit)] - - 

Unrecognized past service costs - - 

Net assets / (liability) recognized in the 
Balance Sheet 

(4,31,851/-) (2,73,575/-) 

  

Actuarial assumption used  

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 

Discount rate 6.78% 7.83% 

Salary Growth rate 5.00% 5.00% 

Mortality IALM 2012-14 
Ultimate 

IALM 2012-14 Ultimate 

Expected rate of return 0 0 

Withdrawal rate (Per Annum) 2.00% 2.00% 

Retirement Age 60 years 60 year 

 

30. Based on the information available with the management, there are no outstanding 
dues to Micro, Small and medium Enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006 as at year end (previous year – Nil) 

31. Fair value of investment in equity instruments is taken on the basis of audited financial 
statement available for the F.Y. 2018-19.   

32. The company does not have any exposure in respect of foreign currency denominated 
assets and liabilities (not hedged by derivative instruments) as at 31 March 2020. 
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33. Balance of trade receivable, Trade Payable and Loans and Advances are subject to 
independent confirmation and reconciliation. 

34. Keeping in view the prudence and absence of virtual certainty of future taxable 
income, the deferred tax assets on unabsorbed business losses and depreciation has not 
been created as on the reporting date.  

35. Previous year figures have been regrouped whenever is necessary. 

36. Financial instruments 

i) Fair values hierarchy 

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial 
position are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined 
based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is 
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data 
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).  

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

Rs. in lacs  

Particulars Level 1 Level 
2 

Level 
3 

Total 

As at 31 March 2020     

Financial assets     

Investments at fair value through OCI      

Equity Instruments  - - 21.03 21.03 

Total - - 21.03 21.03 

As at 31 March 2019 through OCI     

Financial assets     

Investments at fair value      

Equity Instruments  - - 25.54 25.54 

Total - - 25.54 25.54 

37. Financial risk management 

i) Financial instruments by category      Rs. in lacs 
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Particulars 

 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

FVTPL Amortized Cost FVTPL Amortized 
Cost 

Financial assets     

Trade receivable - 3.43 - 6.17 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 3.21 - 6.87 

Other Financial assets  - 0.71 - 3.01 

Other current assets  - 14.13 - 14.96 

Total - 21.48 - 31.01 

Financial Liabilities      

Borrowings  - 0 - 4.25 

Trade payables - - - - 

Other current liabilities  - 3.01 - 12.81 

Total - 3.01 - 17.06 

 

(a) The carrying value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank 
balances, other financial and other current assets recorded at amortized cost, is 
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

(b) The carrying value of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities and 
other current liabilities recorded at amortized cost is considered to be a reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 

ii) Risk management 

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This 
note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity 
manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.  

The Company’s risk management is carried out by finance department of the 
Company under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors 
provide written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering 
specific areas, such as credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate. 

(A) Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail 
to perform or pay amounts due to the Company causing financial loss. It arises from 
cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, security 
deposits, loans given and principally from credit exposures to customers relating to 
outstanding receivables. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to 
the carrying amount of financial assets recognized at reporting date. 
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The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, 
identified either individually or by the Company, and incorporates this information 
into its credit risk controls.  

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any 
significant credit risk. The Company has very limited history of customer default, and 
considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to 
be good. 

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and loans is considered 
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable organizations with high quality 
external credit ratings. 

The Company does not have any expected loss-based impairment recognized on such 

assets considering their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are 

disclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets. 

Details of trade receivables that are past due is given below:   Rs. in lacs 

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 

2019 

Not Due NIL NIL 

0-30 days past due NIL NIL 

31-60 days past due NIL NIL 

61-90 days past due NIL NIL 

More than 90 days past due 3.43 6.17 

TOTAL 3.43 6.17 

 

(B) Liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the 
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to 
meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains 
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities. 

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash 
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into 
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.  

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

The tables below analysis the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity 
groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial 
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash 
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flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying amounts as the impact of 
discounting is not significant. 

Rs. in lacs  

31 March 2020 Payable on 
demand 

Less than 
1 Year 

1-2 
year 

2-3 
year 

More 
than 3 
years 

Total 

Non-Derivatives       

Borrowings - - - - - - 

Trade Payable - - - - - - 

Other current  
Liabilities 

- 3.01 - - - 3.01 

Total - 3.01 - - - 3.01 

 

31 March 2019 Payable on 
demand 

Less than 
1 Year 

1-2 
year 

2-3 
year 

More 
than 3 
years 

Total 

Non-Derivatives       

Borrowings - 4.25 - - - 4.25 

Trade Payable - - - - - - 

Other Financial 
Liabilities 

- 12.69 0.12 - - 12.81 

Total - 16.94 0.12 - - 17.06 

 

(C) Interest rate risk 

The Company’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on 

long-term financing. As at 31 March 2020, the Company’ s exposure to long term 

borrowing is NIL. 

38. Capital Management 

The Company’s capital management objectives are 

- To ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern 

- To provide an adequate return to share holders 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and 
cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet. 
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